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We are pleased to submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Orangeburg County
government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. State statutes 1equire Orangeburg County
government to issue annually a report on its financial position and activities, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of this presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the County’s management. To the best of ow knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly both the
financial position, results of operation and cash flow of the various funds, account groups, and
component units of Orangeburg County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader fo gain an
understanding of the County’s financial activities have been included.

This report presents the financial activity of the County in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth by the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other 1ecognized authoritative sources.

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act, as amended by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Information related to this single audit, including a schedule ot expenditures of federal awards and the
mdependent auditor’s reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in the single audit section of

this report.
The Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary government, i.e.,
Orangeburg County, as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate
entities for which the primary government is financially accountable and exclusion of which would
render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. Orangeburg County, under a Council-
Administrator form of government, provides a broad range of services which include:

1
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e Public Safety — Law enforcement, emergency preparedness plans, jail facilities, and fire
protection

Veterans Assistance

Voter Registration

Roads and Bridges Maintenance

Waste Disposal

Planning/Community Development

Criminal, Civil, Probate and Family Court Administration

Public Defender Assistance

Tax Collection and Dispersal

Health Services — Emergency medical services, indigent health care, and social services
Fconomic Development
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Blended component units, although legally sepaiate entities, are in substance, part of the primary
government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government  Accordingly, the
Orangeburg County COP’s (certificates of participation) have been shown in the Debt Service Fund and
the Capital Projects Fund. Discretely presented component units are reported separately on the
combining balance sheet to emphasize that they are legally separate fiom the primary government and to
differentiate their financial position, results of operations, and cash flows from those of the primary
government. The Oiangeburg County Public Library, the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention
Center, and the Orangeburg County Fire District are being reported as discretely presented component

units.
Governmental Structure, Local Economic Condition and Outlook

Orangeburg-At-A-Glance — Orangeburg County is located in the south central part of South Carolina,
approximately 41 milcs south of Columbia, the State Capitol The County covers about 1,106 square
miles, and the soil is generally fertile. Orangeburg County ranks first in the state in cash receipts from
sales of crops and livestock. Principal farm commaodities include corn, cotton, dairy products, peaches,
wheat and soybeans. The population of Orangeburg County is currently 91,509. Orangeburg County is
beautifully landscaped with natural beauty, numetous historical buildings, churches, moderate climate and
a coveted quality of life. Although once a largely rural and agricultural county, Orangeburg County’s
investments in infrastructure and strategic location near the Port of Chaileston are bringing about
significant levels of economic development and industrial growth.

Orangeburg County enjoys the availability of four institutions of higher education: Claflin University,
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical Education Center, South Carolina State University, and Southein
Methodist College.

The County is served by Interstate Highways 26 and 95, five U.S. highways, and by a netwoirk of South
Carolina highways.

Orangeburg County’s public scrvices are provided by a Council-Administrator form of government, with
seven Council members elected by district with a residency requirement Council members serve four-
year staggered terms of office  The County Administrator is responsible for carying out the policies and
ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for
appointing the directors of the government’s departments not under the control of elected officials.




Economic _Condition _and Outlook — There are over one hundred industrial facilities located in
Orangebutg County which include plants manufacturing lawn equipment, hand tools, garments, roller
bearings, organic chemicals, Teflon tubing, processing systems, fabric printing, chemicals, electrical
assembly components, undergarments, wooden products, bakery products, heating wire, cement, various
lumber products, power cable, shipping containers, knitting machines, diesel engines, NASCAR 1ace
coolers, and numerous other items The largest industrial facilities in Orangeburg County include the
plants of Husqvarna (2,300 employees), Koyo Corporation of America (600 employees), Sara Lee Bakery
Group (550 employees), Food Lion Distribution Center #3 (518 employees), Zeus Industrial Products,
Inc (450 employces), and Allied Air Enterprises, Inc. (450 employees)

The Town of Santee, located south of Lake Marion, has developed into a 1esort community. The town is
situated adjacent to Interstate 95, and a number of motels, restaurants and other commercial

establishments are located around it.

Orangebuirg County continues to recruit industry placing a strong emphasis on buyer/supplier networks,
retention of existing industries, and recruitment of new industries. A sophisticated marketing plan
concentrating on the new County/City Industrial Park was introduced in 2000. Lennox International
became the Paik’s first tenant in July 2000 with more than 65 employees. Operating as Allied Air
Enterprises, the company has erected a $19,000,000 building and has 400 employees. Other additions to
the Orangeburg County/City Industrial Park include the DANA Corporation (150 employees), a
manufacturer of automobile parts; H. 1. Hackney, a distributor of wholesale grocery products (100
employees); and QM Plastics, a Canadian based manufacturer of plastic components (75 employees). In
2007, Allied Air Enterprises completed a $21,000,000 expansion that created an additional 250 jobs in

Orangeburg County

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Orangeburg County/City Industrial Park — This joint initiative between the County of Orangeburg and
the City of Orangeburg cost approximately $9,000,000, with the total cost being shared equally by the
County of Orangeburg and the City of Orangeburg. Assistance has also been received from the Economic
Development Administration in the form of a $1,500,000 grant to assist in the water and sewer
infrastructure development at the three quadiants of Interstate 26 and US Highway 301 located adjacent
to the park. This greatly augments the industrial patk, will allow for commercial development along this
busy interstate, and will also promote the economic development scheduled for the park. We are
attracting many inquiries from businesses about locating in the park. As a result of the initial successes
within the Patk, a Phase I expansion will be completed in 2009 that will add approximately 220 acres for
industrial development.

Lake Marion Regional Water Authority — This joint municipal water system is a regional concept with
five countics in the eastern portion of the State of South Carolina where 50,000+ citizens will be served
with potable water as well as replacing the individual well system throughout this region. Since this
announcement was made last year, the regional water authority has been awarded 336 million in federal
grants to assist in the development and construction of the water treatment plant and transmission lines.

The water plant became operational on April 28, 2008.

Marthews Industrial Park — The Matthews Industrial Patk is being developed on approximately 500
acres located at the intersection of US Highway 301 and 176 In addition, an adjacent property consisting
of approximately 250 acres will be the site for a regional wastewater treatment facility that will serve the
growing demand for wastewater service in this rapidly developing area. The park is expected to be
completed in 2009
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Other Developments — In 2007, Iafza International, a subsidiary of Dubai World, acquired approximately
1,300 acres in Orangebutg County near the Town of Santee and the intersection of Interstate Highway 95
and US 301. Jafza International announced plans to develop a $600 million regional logistics and
distribution center that will serve the Southeastern United States. Construction on the facility is
scheduled to begin in 2009 with the first phase of operation commencing in 2010

On November 2, 2004, Orangeburg County citizens voted in a referendum to extend the one-cent Capital
Projects Sales Tax for an additional seven years. The referendum was approved by a 68% to 32% margin.
Collection of this one-cent sales tax began in May 2006 and is expected to generate approximately $71
million for the construction of 108 capital and infrastructure projects Construction activity is underway
and is expected to be completed by 2010.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls — Otangeburg County Council and Management are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal control designed to ensure that the assets of Orangeburg County are protected from
loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The internal control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by Management

As a recipient of federal, state and local assistance, the County of Orangeburg is also responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal control is in place to guarantee and document compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to these programs. This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
Management and contracted services on as as-needed basis with outside audit firms.

As a part of the County of Orangeburg’s single audit process, described earliet, tests were made of our
internal control and of our compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including those related to

federal financial assistance programs.

Budgeting Controls — In addition to the aforementioned internal control, Orangeburg County government
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with legal
ptovisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Orangeburg County Council.
Activities of the general fund, eight of the twenty special revenue funds, the debt service fund, and one
capital projects fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (i.e.,
the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the approptiated amount) is the departmental level
within each find. The government also maintains an encumbiance accounting system as one method of
maintaining budgetary control Encumbered amounts lapse at year end. However, outstanding
encumbrances are re-appropriated as part of the following year’s budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
County of Orangeburg continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash_Management — The management of cash and investments is the responsibility of the County
Treasurer A negotiated rate of interest is paid daily on cash held in checking accounts. Other
investments are made in U.S. Government Agency Securities and/or certificates of deposit. All
investments are made in compliance with S.C. Codes 6-5-10 and 12-45-220.

Risk Management — The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets, errors and omissions as well as job-related illnesses and accidents. The County
pays premiums to a public entity risk pool for workers’ compensation insurance and to the State Insurance
Reserve Fund for all other forms of coverage. The County employs a full-time Risk Manager to
administer its workers® compensation and loss prevention programs.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit — South Carolina’s state statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants. The firm of McGregor & Company, LLP provided audit services for the County of
Orangeburg for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in
state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act of
1984 and the related U S. Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. Generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards set forth in General Accounting Office’s Governmental Auditing
Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s reports on the basic
financial statements and combining of individual fund statements and schedules are included in the
financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports on internal control and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations can be found in the single audit section of this report.

Awards — The Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Orangeburg
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2007. This was the
twentieth Certificate of Achievement, the County of Orangeburg published an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements

In addition, the County was selected to receive three prestigious civic awards for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. The County was honored by the National Association of Counties with a 2008
Achievement Award and was recognized by the S.C. Association of Counties with a J. Mitchell Graham
award for excellence in governmental service. The County also received the prestigious All-American
City designation from the The National Civic League in 2005. Only ten communities nationwide
received this award.

Acknowledge — The timely preparation of the CAFR could not have been accomplished without the
efficient services of the entire staffs of the Finance Department, the County Treasurer, the Administration,
and the special assistance provided by our independent audit firm, McGregor & Company, LLP. We
would like to express our appreciation to all staff members of those departments who assisted and
contributed to the preparation of this report. Due credit also should be given to the Chairman and
members of the Orangeburg County Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the
operations of the government in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

()

illiam Clark
County Administrator
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the County Council

County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County of Orangeburg as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008 which collectively comprise
the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the County of Orangebuig, South Carolina’s management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits containcd in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppotting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ou

opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, cach major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of
Orangeburg, South Carolina as of Tune 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position for
the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 30,
2009, on our consideration of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rcgulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The puwrpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of inteinal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
comphiance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of our andit

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA

1190 Boulevard Street (803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003

Orangeburg SC 29115 fax (803) 259-5469 fax (803) 787-2299
10 (803) 536-1015

fax (803) 536-1020 WWwW mcgregorepa com




The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, on pages 12
through 18 and pages 56 through 57, are not a tequired part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of

management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comptise the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund and major capital projects funds
financial statements, and statistical section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements of County of Orangeburg, South Carolina. The combining and individual

nonmajor fund and major capital projects funds financial statements and accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of

the basic financial statements and, in owr opinion, are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statcments taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical section
have not been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Me ﬁ/hua@/\ % Co. i

Orangeburg, South Catolina
Apxil 30, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

This section of Qrangeburg County’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
County’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s financial statements, which follow

this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The County’s assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2008 by $90 million (net assets) Of this

amount $12 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing

obligations.

The County’s repaid $11 million of bond, note and capital lease obligations during the year

The County’s total net assets increased $6.3 million over the course of this year’s operations.

During the yeatr, the County’s general fund balance was decreased $1 7 million.

The general fund actual revenues were $296,000 more than budgeted. However, general fund

expenditures were $881,000 million more than budgeted.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved general fund balance was $4.5 million or 13 percent
of general fund expenditures and other uses for the financial year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts — management'’s discussion and arnalysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents
combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the County:

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and
short-term information about the County’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the County
government, reporting the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statcments,

»  The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like public safety were
financed in the skort term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that of the proprictary funds.

The financial statements also include nmotes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide morc detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary infor mation that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining statements that provide
details about our nonmajor governmental funds, each of which are added together and presented in single
columns in the basic financial statements.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the portion of
the County government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this
overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of

the statements.
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Scope

Required financial
statements

Accounting basis and
measuremert focus

Type of asset/liability

information

Type of inflow/
outflow information

The government-wide statements report information about the County as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the
government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in

Figure A-1
Major Features of County of Orangeburg’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide
Statements

Fund Statements

Governmental Funds Fiduciary Funds

Entire County government
(except Fiduciary funds)
and the County’s
component units

 Statement of net assets
» Statement of activities

Accrual accounting and
economntic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term

All revenues and expenses
during year, regardless of
when cash is received or
paid

The activities of the County  Instances in which the
that are not proprietary o1 County is the agent
fiduciary, such as police, for someone else’s
fire, and parks resources

« Statement of
fiduciary net assets

» Balance sheet

» Statement revenues,
expenditures, and changes
in fund balances

Modified accrual accounting  Accrual accounting
and current financial and economic
resources focus resources focus
Only assets expected to be All agency assets
used up and liabilities that and liabilities, both
come due during the year short-term and

or soon thereafter; no long-term

capital assets included

Revenue for which cash is
received during o1 soon after
the end of the year;
expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received o1 paid

The two government-wide statements report the County’s nef assets and how they have changed. Net
assets — the difference between the County’s assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the County’s

financial health, or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial

health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the County you need to consider additional non-financial factors such

as changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the County’s roads.

o Governmental activities ~ Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as the police,
fire, public works, and parks departments, and general administration. Property taxes and state and

federal grants finance most of the activities

13




FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant
funds — not the County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the County uses to keep track of

specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.
e The County Council established other funds to control and manage moncy for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants

The County has two kinds of funds:

o  Governmental funds — Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short- term view that helps you determine whether there are more
a fewer financial 1esources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs,
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide
statements, we providc additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or
on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

¢ Fiduciary funds — The County acts as agent, or fiduciary, for other entities’ resources. The County is
tesponsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets
We exclude these activities from the County’s government-wide financial statements because the
County cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE

Net assets

The County’s net assets increased by $6 million o1 7.6% between fiscal years 2007 and 2008 ending at
approximately $90 million. (See Table A-1.)

Table A-1
County of Orangeburg’s Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

Total
Governmental Percentage
Activities Change
2008 2007 __2007-2008 _
(Restated)

Current and other assets $131,213 $ 124,090 57%
Capital assets 75,131 68,521 9 6%
Total assets 206,344 192.611 7 1%
Long-term debt 93,461 91,670 2.0%
Other liabilities 22,440 16.849 33 2%
Total liabilities 115,901 108,519 6.8%

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 40,347 43,572 (7.9)%
Restricted 37,810 33,190 13.9%
Unrestricted 12,286 7.330 67 6%
Total net assets $ 90,443 § 84092 7 6%
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Changes in net assets. The County’s total réveniues increaséd by 13 5 percent to $68 8 million. (See
Table A-2) Approximately 43 percent of the County’s revenue comes from property taxes and 14
percent comes from capital projects sales tax. Approximately 14 percent comes from fees charged for
services, and 21 percent is from state and federal aid.

The total cost of all programs, services and capital improvements increased approximately $1.7 or 2.7
percent. The County’s expenses cover a range of services, with about 22 percent related to public safety

and 15 percent related to public works.
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Table A-2

Changes in County of Orangeburg’s Net Assets
(in thousands of dollars)

Total
Governmental Percentage
Activities Change
2008 2007 2007-2008
Revenucs
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 9,656 $ 10,769 (11 52)%
Grants and confributions 2,848 4779 (40.4)%
Capital grants 5,434 177 3070.0%
General revenues
Property taxes 29,585 27,591 7.2%
Other taxes 9,698 9,601 1.0%
Intergovernmental 6,445 5,528 16.5%
Other 5.202 2,256 130.5%
Total revenues 68.868 60,701 13.5%
Expenses
General government 17,248 9,020 912%
Judicial 3,526 3,490 1.0%
Public works 9,658 14,888 (35.2)%
Public safety 13,552 20,071 (32.5)%
Social and health 1,486 2,483 (40.2)%%
Sanitation 4,422 5,117 13.6%
Culture and recreation 8,380 3,986 116.0%
Interest and fiscal charges 3,256 1,797 81.1%
Allocation to library 990 - 100.0%
Total expenses 62,518 60,852 2.7%
Increase in net assets $ 6,350 5 ({dsh 102.3%
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $107 9 million, an increase of $1 5 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
11 percent of this total amount ($12 million) constitutes umreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is
not available for new spending because it has alieady been committed to pay debt service ($10 million) or
to fund capital asset projects for County facilities or infiastructure improvements ($85 million).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $4.5 million. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance to total fund expenditures
Unreserved fund balance represents approximately 12 percent of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the County’s general fund decreased by $1.7 million during the current fiscal year.
Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

e Restatement in fund balance of §1.3 million — County’s share of prior years’ allocation to LEC due
to actual expenditures exceeding budget
e Correction of $487,228 in payroll liability accounts.

The debt service fund had a total fund balance of $975,152, all of which is reserved for the payment of

debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was
$768,410

The County’s two capital projects sales tax funds had a total combined fund balance of $80.5 million.
Approximately $8 2 million of this amount is reserved for the payment of debt service. The remaining
$72 3 million is reserved to improve, repair and construct infrastructure in the County. The net combined
decrease in fund balances during the current year was $12.1 million.

The County issued a $9 7 million G.O. Bond in fiscal year 2008 Vatious capital projects were funded
during the year

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were approximately $2.1 million
increase in appropriations:

Actual general fund expenditures were $881 thousand more than budget amounts. This is primarily the
result of capital lease financing not being budgeted for fiscal year 2008 which was approximately $2.3
million.

Resources available for appropriation were $296 thousand greater than budgeted amount as follows:

Other revenues were $597 thousand less than budgeted.

Property taxes were $606 thousand more than budgeted
Intergovernmenial income was $33 1 thousand greater than budgeted
Interest on investments were $299 thousand less than budgeted.

® & @ o
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CAPITAL ASSETé AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2008, the County had invested $75.1 million (net of accurmnulated depreciation) in a broad
range of capital assets. (See Table A-3.) This amount represents a net increase (including restatements,

additions and deductions) of $6.8 million, or 10 percent, over last year.

Table A-3
County of Orangeburg’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars)

Total
Governmental Percentage
Activities Change
2008 2007 2007-2008
(Restated)

Land $ 43850 $ 3,779 28 3%
Construction in progress 7,101 2,869 147 5%
Buildings and improvements 46,761 46,042 1.5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 42,372 40,031 5 8%
Infrastructure 37,225 33,870 9.9%
Accumulated depreciation (63.179) (58.070) 8.8%
$ 75,130 $ 68,521 9.6%

This year’s major capital asset additions included:

e $3 million in additions of infrastructure
e  $3 9 million in net additions of equipment, buildings, and imptovements.
s  $4.6 million in net additions related to construction in progress.

More detailed information about the County’s capital assets is presented in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial
statements.

Long-term Debt

At yeat-end the County had $93 .5 million in bonds, notes, and capital lease obligations outstanding — an
increase of 6.7% over last year — as shown in Table A-4 This increase is due primarily to the County
issuing approximately $9.715 million in G O bonds during fiscal year 2008. More detailed information
about the County’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.

The state limits the amount of general obligation debt the County can issue to 8 percent of the assessed

value of all taxable property within the County’s legal limits. Our outstanding debt is below this limit —
which is currentty $20.2 million as reflected in Table 12 of this report.
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i Table A-4
County of Orangeburg’s Outstanding Debt
(in thousands of dollars)

Total
Governmental Percentage
Activities __Change
2008 2007 2007-2008
(Restated)

General obligation bonds $ 18,385 $ 9,645 90.6%
Revenue bonds 60,456 67,194 (10.0)%
Note payable 1,632 1,823 (11 0)%
Capital lease obligations 9,149 9.097 0.5%
Total $ 89,622 $ 87,759 2.1%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

e Unemployment now stands at 10.6 percent, compared to 11 percent a year ago. This compares
unfavorably with the state’s rate of 6.2 petcent and the national 1ate of 5.6 percent.
¢ Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget for 2009. Amounts
available for appropriation in the general fund budget are at nearly $34.2 million, a decrease of about 2
percent over the final 2008 budget of $34 9 million.

Budgeted expenditures are expected to increase approximately 3.8 percent to $37 4 million over the actual
2008 expenditures and other uses of $36 million. The largest increments again are wages and other

related employment costs.

If these estimates are realized, the County’s budgctary general fund balance is expected to increase
slightly by the close of 2008.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the

money it receives, If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact Gloria Breland, Finance Director, o1 visit the County website at www.orangebur gcounty.org,
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Exhibit A-1

JUNE 30, 2008
Primary Government
Governmental Component
Activities Units
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 48,314,424 $ 451,424
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent 158,771 -
Investment with fiscal agent 72,771,364 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Taxes 1,883,903 152,206
Other 2,640,821 -
Due from primary government - 696,452
Due from other governments 4,258,858 411,533
Due fiom component unit 187,250 -
Inventories 38,856 -
Other assets 744,483 22,009
Due from fiduciary funds 214,607 -
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 75,130,527 -
Total assets 206,343,864 1,733,624
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 8,231,885 206,352
Accrued salaries and benefits 879,206 82,603
Due to component units 696,452 -
Due to primary government - 187,250
Due to fiduciary funds 11,783,869 -
Accrued interest payable 831,148 -
Other liabilities 17,711 -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within onc year 12,694,539 99,596
Due in more than one yeat 80,766,239 132,524
Total liabilities 115,901,049 708,325
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 40,346,895 -
Restricted for:
Debt service 10,019,169 -
Capital outlay 27,791,535 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 12,285,216 1,025,299
Total net assets 90,442,815 $ 1,025,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit A-4
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Total fund balances - Governmental funds $ 107,991,053

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These assets consist of:

Land 4,850,479
Construction in progress 7,101,154
Infrastructure 37,225,468
Buildings and improvements 46,761,052
Furniture, Fixtures, and equipment 42,371,555
Accumulated depreciation (63,179,181)
Total capital assets 75,130,527
Some revenues will be collected after year-end but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds
Deferred property taxes 1,613,161
Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:
General obligation debt (18,385,000)
Capital leases payable (9,149,729)
Revenue bonds (60,456,496)
Notes payable (1,632,714)
Accrued interest (831,148)
Landfill closure and post closure costs (257,826)
Premium on revenue bonds (2,371,965)
(1,207,048)

Compensated absences

Total long-term liabilities (94,291,926)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 90,442,815

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia! statements
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit A-6
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 10 THE SYATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - Total government funds b 1,541,015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Howevet, in the statement of activities, the cost of capitat assets
is allocated aver their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay
Capital disposals, net of accumulated depreciation
Depreciation expense

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

12,529,840

(3,441)

(5,916,446)
6,609,953

Because some revenue will not be collected for several months after the
County's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available” revenues
and are deferted in the governmental funds Deferred property tax revenues

increased by this amount this year (194,503)

Bond and capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds; however, issuing debt increases long-term Habilities in the
statement of net assets. In the current petiod, proceeds were received from:

General obligation bonds issued
Assets acquired through capital lcase

(9,715,000)
(2,256,689)
(11,971,689)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds But the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net assets In the current period, these amounts
consisted oft

Bond principal retirement 7,712,277
Note payable retirement 190,398
Capital lease paymentis 2,204,075
Total iong-term debt repayment 10,106,750
Somme expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds
Compensated absences (286,705)
Postclosure care costs 10,255
Amortization on bond premium 379,515
Amortization on refunding difference (28,908)
74,157
In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds,
whereas in governmental funds, interest is expensed when due 185,056
6,350,739

Change in net assets of governmental activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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COUNTY OF ORANJGEB.URG', SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit A-7

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Property taxes receivable
Due from general fund
Due from others
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Due to General Fund

Due to General Fund - overage/(deficit)
Due to Special Revenue Fund

Due to taxing units

Due to others

Total liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1,455,387
2,034,700
3,699,232
11,783,869
64,435

19,037,623

142,762
59,491
12,354

15,319,994
3,503,022

19,037,623




. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County of Orangeburg, South Carolina (the County), have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GASP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial principles The more
significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting entity

Orangeburg County, South Carolina is governed by an elected seven-member council. As
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
financial statements present the government and its component units, although legally sepatate
entities, are, in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units ate
combined with data of the primary government. A discretely presented component unit, on the
other hand, is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the government. All of the County’s component units report
financial data using June 30 year ends.

Blended component unit

The Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority Corporation (the Corporation) was
formed primarily to construct capital projects under the second penny sales tax referendum.
The Corporation is governed by a board composed of the County Council Chairman and the
Orangeburg County Administrator. The Corporation financed its projects by issuing revenue
bonds which are being retired exclusively by the County’s rental payments for property
owned by the Corporation. The Corporation is presented as a governmental fund type.

Discretely presented component units

Orangeburg County Public Library — The Orangeburg County Public Library (the Library)
provides library services to County residents. Orangeburg County Council appoints all the
members of the Library’s Board of Trustees and provides the majority of the Library’s funds.
The County also owns all of the Library’s fixed assets. Accordingly, the Library is fiscally

dependent on the County

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center — The Orangeburg-Calhoun
Regional Detention Center (the LEC) houses prisoners for Orangeburg and Calhoun
Counties. The LEC is govetned by a board composed of seven members, five of whom are
appointed by Orangeburg County Council, and two of whom are appointed by Calhoun
County Council. The LEC is fiscally dependent upon the County because its budget must be
approved by the Orangeburg County Council and the County provides the majority of jts
funding. The LEC is presented as a governmental fund type.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

A. Reporting entity (Continued)

The Orangeburg County Fire Commission — The Orangebutg County Fire Commission
(the Commission) was created in 1997 to provide coordinated fire protection throughout
Orangeburg County The Commission has either bought or leased the equipment used by the
twenty-nine towns and volunteer fire departments which previously provided fire protection
in the County. The Commission is governed by a board composed of seven members, all of
whom are appointed by the Orangeburg County Council The Commission’s budget and the
special millage rate to fund it must be approved by County Council. In addition, the County
is wholly responsible for the Commission’s debt and owns all the Commission’s capital
assets. Accordingly, the Commission is fiscally dependent on the County.

Complete financial statements for the Orangeburg County Public Library may be obtained at
the Central Library Office located at 510 Louis Street, N.E, Orangeburg, South Carolina.
Complete financial statements for the LEC may be obtained at its office, 1520 Ellis Avenue
Ext., NE, Orangeburg, South Carolina. Complete financial statements for the Fire
Commission may be obtained from the Otangeburg County Administrator, 1437 Amelia
Street, Orangebu g, South Carolina.

B. Basis of presentation

The County’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which
provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
County as a whole. These statements include the financial activitics of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds. For the most pait, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from the statements. The statements distinguish between those activities of the
County that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities for
the County at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the County’s governmental
activities of the County. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program or department and therefore, clearly are identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by
the program, grants, and contributions that are 1estricted to meeting the operational o1 capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earmed on grants that is required to be used
to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as progiam revenues are
presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with progtam revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Fund financial statements

During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or
activities in sepaiate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the
County at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental financial statements is on
major funds Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
agaregated and presented in a single column, Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

C. Fund accounting

The accounts of the government are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purposes and is uscd to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
numbei of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The government has the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those 1equited to be accounted for in another

fund.

The capital project 2008 bond issue accounts for bond proceeds and interest revenues that
are restricted for repayment of principal and interest on the bond and expenditure for
equipment and facilities owned by the County.

The capital project sales tax funds (I and II) account for the sale tax revenues that are
restricted to improve, repair and construct infiastructure for the County.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue soutces
(other than special assessments, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on geuveral long-term debt associated with equipment and facilities

owned by the County

The agency funds account for monies held on behalf of school districts, special districts and
other agencies that use the County as a depository or property taxes arc collected on behalf of
the other goveinments.
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"COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Measurement Focus
Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the County are

included on the statement of net assets.

Fund financial statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only cuirent assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i e., revenues and other financing sources)
and uses (i e, expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of acconnting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared

using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of

accounting. Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual
and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording
of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. L

Revenues — exchanges and non-exchange transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrval basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available, Available means that the resources will be collected
within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the County, available means expected to
be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the County receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year
when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the County must provide local
resources to be used for a specificd purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the County on a reimbursement basis On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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COUNTY OF ORAN&EBUR'G, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied.

Property taxes receivable for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2008
have been recorded as deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received before the
eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the
available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred,

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decteases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incuired, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable

appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General

Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be

reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

Cash and investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the

date of acquisition

State statutes authorize the government and its component units to invest in (1) obligations of

the United States and its agencies, (2) general obligations of South Carolina and its political
subdivisions, (3) financial institutions if their deposits are insured by an agency of the federal
government, and (4) certificates of deposit which are collaterally secured by securities of the
type described at (1) and (2) above which are held by a third party.

Investments, consisting of repurchase agreements and mortgage-backed securities, are stated
at fair value. No investments are stated at amortized cost.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Receivables and payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund
receivables/payables” (i e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from funds

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible taxes
Taxes on real property are assessed as of January 1, levied the following September, due
January 15, and become delinquent March 15 Liens attached to the property at the time the
taxes are levied. The levy date for motor vehicle taxes is the first day of the month in which
the motor vehicle license expires. These taxes are due by the last day of the same month.

Property tax receivables and allowances by major and other governmental funds as of
June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Propetrty taxes receivable $ 1,470,708 $622,518 $ 2,093,226
Less: Allowance (147.071) (62,252) (209.323)
Net $1,323.637 560,266 $1.883,903

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the fust-in/first-out (FIFO) method The costs of
governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than

when purchased
Intergovernmental receivable

Amounts due from federal grants represent reimbursable costs, which have been incurred by
the County but have not been reimbursed by the giantor agency. Costs under grant programs
are recognized as expenditures in the period in which they are incurred by the County:.

Compensated absences

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the
government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from
service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued when incurted in the government-
wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is

reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of

employee 1esignations and retirements. The general fund is used to liquidate any liabilities
for compensated absences.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Use of estimates

The financial statements include estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Interfund transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in
the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The amounts reported include infrastructure acquired
priot to the County implementing GASB Statement No. 34, Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful
life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets aie recorded at cstimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as the projects are
constructed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Land improvements 15 years
Buildings 30 years
Building improvements 15 years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5to 10 years
Infrastructure 25 to 30 years
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued)

Net assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bortowing used for the acquisition, construction,
or improvements of those assets Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the County
or through external restrictions imposed by creditots, grantors, laws, or 1egulations of other

goveinments,

The County applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary information — Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the general fund, the debt service
fund, and vatious but not all special revenue funds The County has no major special revenue funds
that would require legally adopted budgets. The capital improvements capital projects fund also
adopts an annual budget consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, but the other two adopt project-length budgets. All annual appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end

In February of each year, all agencies of the County submit requests for appropriations to the
County Administrator so that a budget may be prepared. By the end of March, the proposed budget
is presented to County Council for review. The Council holds public hearings, and a final budget
must be prepared and adopted no later than June 30.

The appropriate budget is prepared by fund, function and department. Line item transfers within
operating departments may be approved by the County Administrator. Transfers from the

contingency account in excess of $2,000 must be approved by County Council. The legal level of

budgetary control is the department level. Budget amounts reflected in the accompanying financial
statements represent the original budgets and any revisions.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g, purchase
orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be re-appropriated and honored
during the subsequent year.

Deficit fund equity — As of June 30, 2008, Roads and Bridges Maintenance, New Brooklyn
Lighting Tax District, Victims Assistance, Brookdale Lighting Tax District, Special Education, and
Whitaker Lighting Tax District special revenue funds had deficit fund balances of $46,170,
$12,135, $125,619, $9,907, $1,006,158, and $61,410, respectively. As of June 30, 2008, Economic

Development Tobacco and Edisto Sewer Capital Projects funds had deficit fund balances of

$202,049 and $465,485 respectively.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE1-

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENIS

At Tune 30, 2008, the cartying amount of the County’s deposits was $49,928,582 and the
bank balance was $52,463,472. State law requires that all of the County’s deposits be
covered by FDIC insurance or by collateral held in the pledging financial institutions’ trust
departments in the County’s name. At June 30, 208, approximately $299,560 of the
County’s bank deposits were uncollateralized.

As of Tune 30, 2008, the County had the following investments:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair value Less than 1 1-5 More than 5
U.S Treasuries $ 3,598232 $ 3,508232 § - 3 .
U. S Agencies 6,476,000 6,476,000 - -
Guaranteed investraent
contracts 64,731,832 - 49.837.173 14.894.659
$ 74,806,064 §$10,074,232 §$49.837,173 § 14,894,659

Interest rate risk

The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturitics as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing intetest rates

As of Tune 30, 2008, the County held $64,731,832 in fixed rate guaranteed investment
contracts with maturities ranging from one to approximately seven yeats. The long-term
maturities of these investments may expose the County to significant interest 1ate risk
arising from potential fair value losses in a period of increasing interest 1ates,

Credit risk

The County has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices other
than state law.

The County’s investments in U.S, Treasuries and U.S. Agencies were rated AAA by
Moody’s Investors Services and AAA by Standard & Poor’s. Of the County’s investments
in guaranteed investment contracts, underlying securities exceeding 364,731,832 are held
by the investment’s counterparty, in the name of the County.

Concentration of credit risk

The County’s policy places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any one
issuer.
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COUNTY OF ORANE?EBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IIT - DETATLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown on the
government-wide statement of net assets and the statement of fiductary net assets is as

follows:

Reported value of deposits

$ 49,928,582

Fair value of investments 74.806,064
$ 124,734,646

Primary Government:
Cash and cash equivalents ~ Exhibit A-1 $ 48,314,424
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent — Exhibit A-1 158,771
Investments with fiscal agent — Exhibit A-1 72,771,364
Cash and cash equivalents — Exhibit A-7 1,455,387
Investments — Exhibit A-7 2,034,700
$ 124,734,646

NOTE2- CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:
Balance
Balance As restated Reductions/ Balance
June 30, 2007 Restatement June 30, 2007 Additions Transfers June 30, 2008
Govemmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated .

Land $ 3.778.753 $ - $ 3,778,753 $ 1,071,726 5 - $ 4,850,479
Construction in progress 2.868.981 - 2,868,981 4.560.597 (328.424) 7.101.154

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 8 6647734 8- 5. 6647734 £5.632.323

Capital assets being depreciated

§(328424) §.11.951.633

Infrastructure $ 33,579,229 $§ 290,757 $ 33,869,986 $ 3,027,058 $ 328,424 $ 37,225,468
Building and

improvements 45,810,864 231,410 46,042,274 718,778 - 46,761 052
Fumiture, fixtures and

equipment 39436962 393.656 40,030.618 3.151.681 (810.744) 42.371.555

Total capital assets at

being depreciated  ___118.827.055  _1115.823 119.942.878 6.897.517
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

III - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE2 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Balance
Balance As restated Reductions/ Balance
June 30, 2007 _ Restatement June 30, 2007 Additions Transfers June 30, 2008
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (5,160,595) ) (5.160,600) (1,001,018) - (6,161,618)
Building and
improvements (25,955 739) 42,350 (25,913,389) (1,065,212) - (26,978,601)
Fumiture, fixtures and
equipment _{26.064.428) (931,621) (26.996.049) (3.850.216) 807303 (30.038.962)
Total accumulated
depreciation (57.180,762) (889,276) (58,070 038) (5.216,446) 807.303 (63.179.181)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 61,646.293 226.547 61,872.840 98107t 324983 63.178.894
Government activities
cepital assets net  § 68,204,027  § 226,547 $68.520.574 $6.613,394 § (3441  $£75.130.527
NOTE3- COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
Regional Total
Fire Publie Detention =~ Component
Commission Library Center Units
Assets:
Cash, Investments, and other assets $ 850,783 $ 361,760 $521.081 $ 1,733,624
Total assets 850,783 361,760 521,081 1.733.624
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and othet
current liabilities 70,764 27,279 477,758 575,801
Other liabilities 13,435 25,165 93,924 132,524
Total liabilities 84.199 52,444 571.682 708.325
Net assets:
Unrestricted (deficit) 766.584 309.316 (50.601) 1,025,299
Total net assets $ 766,584 $309,316 §(50,601) $1,025299
Reconciliation of total component unit fund balances to net assets of component unit
activities.
Regional Total
Fire Public Detention =~ Component
Commission Library Center Units
Total Fund Balances — Component
Units $ 666,607 $ 354,253 $ 108,592 $ 1,129,452
Some revenues will be collected
after year-end but are not available
soon enough to pay for the current
petiod’s expenditures and therefore
are deferred in the funds 127,967 - - 127,967
Some other liabilities are not due
and payable in the current period
and therefore are not teported in
the funds (27,990) (44,937) (159,193) (232.120)
Net assets of component units '
activities $ 766,584 $309.316 $.(50,601 $1,025299
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Fire Commission
Condensed Statement of Activities

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for  Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Public Safety $2,351,537 § - $ -3 - $(2351,537)
General revenues:
Property taxes 2,376,321
Interest 19,324
Miscellaneous 6.813
Total general revenues 2,402.458
Change in net assets 50,921
Net assets — beginning 715.663
Net assets — ending $ 766,584

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

of Component Unit to the Statement of Activitics
Net change in fund balance — Component units

Because some revenue will not be collected for several
months after the County’s fiscal year ends, they are
not considered “available” revenues and are defeired
in the governmerital funds. Deferred property tax
revenues decreased by this amount this year.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do
not require the use of current financial resources and

therefore are not reported as expenditures

Changes in net assets of component unit activities
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NOTE 3— COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION (Continued)

Regional Detention Center
Condensed Statement of Activities

Net (Expense)

Revenue and

Changes in

Program Revenues Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for  Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Governmental activities  $ 5,316,759 § - $5304,594 § - $ (12,165)
Business type activities 113,560 110,989 - - (2.571)
$5430319 $110989 $5.304594 § - (14,736)
General revenues:

Other general revenues
Total general revenues
Change in net assets
Net assets — beginning — restated — Note 17
Net assets — ending

1,948

1,948

(12,788)
(37.813)
8 (50.601)

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

of Component Unit to the Statement of Activities.

Net change in fund balance — Component units

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources

and therefore are not reported as expenditures

Changes in net assets of component unit activities
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NOTE3~ COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION (Continued)

Public Library
Condensed Statement of Activities
Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for  Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Culture and recreation $ 1,339,332  $.19,956 $ 228,599 $ - $(1,090.777)
General revenues:
Payment from Primary Government 989,848
Miscellaneous 41,760
Total general revenues _ 1,031,608
Change in net assets (59,169)
Net assets — beginning — restated — Note 17 368.485
Net assets — ending 3309316

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
of Component Unit to the Statement of Activities.

Net change in fund balances — Component units $ (46,660)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not

reported as expenditures (12,509)
Changes in net assets of component unit activities $(59,169)
NOTE 4 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The balances of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental $ 2,235,503
General Fund Capital Project Sales Tax IT 1,889,114
Nonmajor Governmental General Fund 16,189,534
Capital Project Sales Tax I General Fund 12,236,661
Capital Project 2008 Bond Issue General Fund 9.558.618
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NOTE 4 -

NOTE 5 -

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFKERS (Continued)

All of the above balances are scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year. The
balances at June 30 resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and payments between funds are made.

Any transactions to transfer revenues from the fund budgeted to receive them to the fund
budgeted to expend them are reported as transfers from and to other funds. Total transfers
during the year ended June 30, 2008 consisted of the following individual amounts:

Transfer In Fund Transfer Out Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund $ 581,232
Nonmajor Governmental Fund  General Fund 794,570
Capital Project 2008 Bond Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund 900
Nonmajor Governmental Fund  Capital Project Sales Tax I Fund 1,050,000

$2,426,702

Payments from Component Units

The Orangeburg County Fire District paid $260,395 to the County for payment of principal
and interest on a general obligation bond held by the County for Fire District related assets.

The Orangeburg-Cathoun Regional Detention Center paid $40,619 to the County for lease
payments on a capital lease held by the County on assets used by the Detention Center.

These transactions are included in intergovernmental revenue of the County.

LEASES

Capital leases — The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee in order to finance
acquisition of various vehicles, radio equipment, heavy equipment and fire trucks. The
lease agreements include a bargain purchase option and qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposes.

The following is an analysis of equipment leased under capital leases as of June 30, 2008:;

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 14,423,147
Less: accumulated depreciation _(5.489.757)
Carrying value $ 8,933.3%0
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NOTE5- LEASES (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2008 were as follows:

2009 $ 2,466,596
2010 1,695,848
2011 1,179,318
2012 3,204,151
2013 312,417
Thereafter 1,603,473
Total minimum lease payments 10,465,803
Less, amount representing interest 1,316,074
Present value of minimum lease payments $9,149.729

Capital leases payable at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following individual leases:

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into October 2007 for $2,256,689,
collateralized by communication equipment. Monthly
payments of $20,000, including principal and interest
at 5 17%. This agreement matures in September 2017, $2,224,416

Lease purchase agreement with a bank entered into
Jamuary 2005 for $1,529,820, collateralized by
vehicles. Semi-annual payments of $224,067,
including principal and interest at 2.87%. The agree-
ment matures in January 2009. 242,432

Lease purchase with a bank entered into June 2006 for
$2,400,000, collateralized by vehicles. Semi-annual
payments of $419,725, including principal and interest
at 3.6%. The agreement matures in June 2009 1,221,133

Lease purchase with a bank entered into June 2006 for
$561,256, collateralized by vehicles. Semi-annual
payments of $100,691, including principal and interest
at 3 7%. The agreement matures in June 2009. 284,265

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into September 2006 for
84,262,034, collateralized by heavy equipment.
Monthly payments of $52,145, including principal and
interest ranging between 3 96% and 5.97%  The
agreement matures in September 2011, 3,487,033
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NOTES -

NOTE 6 -

LEASES (Continued)

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into October 2006 for $1,100,651,
collateralized by heavy equipment Monthly payments
of $12,157, including principal and interest ranging
between 4.40% and 5.85%. The agreement matures in
October 2011.

Lease purchase agreement with a bank entered into

December 2006 for $327,425, with a down payment of

$81,856, collateralized by communication equipment.
Annual payments of $57,207, including principal and
interest at 531%. The agreement matures in
December 2011.

Lease purchase agreement with a commercial credit
corporation entered into January 2007 for $667,516,
collateralized by heavy equipment. Monthly payments
of $9,401, including principal and interest ranging
between 4 32% and 5.08%. The agreement matures in
January 2012.

LONG-TERM DEBT

939,940

201,402

549,108
$9,149,729

Gencral Obligation Bonds — The County has issued general obligation debt to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation
bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are composed of the following individual issues:

Balance

June 30, 2007 Additions Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2008

Amount due
in one year

General obligation bonds
of 1999 due in annual
instaltments ranging from
$165,000 to $275,000
through January 1, 2014;
interest at 4% to 6% -
original issued was
$2,900,000. These bonds
are excluded from the legal
debt margin calculation by

referendum $ 1,640,000 $ - $ 195,000
General obligation bonds
of 2003 due in annual
installments ranging from
$345,000 -  $635,000
through April 1, 2023;
interest at 2% to 3% -
original issue was
39,135,000 7,585,000 - 360,000
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NOTE 6— LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Balance Balance Amount due

June 30, 2007 Additions Retirements  June 30,2008 _in one year

General obligation bonds
of 2003 due in annual
installments ranging from
$400,000 -  $420,000
through April 1, 2008;
interest at 1 5% to 2 25% -

original issue was
$2,050,000. 420,000 - 420,000

General obligation bonds
of 2008 due in annual
installments ranging from
$840,000 - $1,145,000
through April 1, 2018;
interest at 3 75% to 5 0% -

original issue was .
$9,715,000 - 9.715.000 - 9.715.000 840,000
Total 645 $.9.715,000 $975000 $18385000  $1420000

The County issued $11,185,000 general obligation bonds, Series 2003 A & B for an
advance refunding of the $2,000,000 outstanding balance of general obligation bonds,
Series 1998. The refunding was undettaken to reduce future debt service payments. The
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old dcbt by $154,164. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and being amortized over the new debt’s life,
which is the same as the refunded debt. The tansaction also resulted in an economic gain

of $61,120 and a reduction of $76,400 in future debt service payments.

Annual requirements to amortize general obligation debt outstanding at June 30, 2008,

excluding arbitrage rebate liabilities, if any, are summarized as follows:

Year ended
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2009 $ 1,420,000 $ 862,250 $ 2,282,250
2010 1,455,000 689,603 2,144,603 ‘
2011 1,505,000 656,190 2,161,190 i
2012 1,560,000 579,385 2,139,385
2013 1,625,000 520,144 2,145,144
2014 -2018 7,915,000 1,672,005 9,587,005
2019 -2023 2.905.000 448,750 3.353,750
$ 18,385,000 $ 5,428,327 $23.813.327
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NOTE 6—- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Revenue Bonds — The County and Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority (a
blended component unit) have issued revenue bonds to fund the construction of various
infrastructure and large-scale building and improvement projects. Sales tax collections
have been designated to re-pay the bonds. Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are
composed of the following individual issues:

Balance Balance Amount due
June 30, 2007 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2008 in one vear

County:

Revenue bond, Series
2002, due in monthly
installments of $1,496
through November 15,
2042, interest at 4.5% -

original issue was
$343,805 $ 313,773 $ - $ 2,277 $ 311,496 $ 4,017

Revenue bond, Series

2002, due in semiannual

installments ranging from

$2,635,000 to $4,400,000

through October 1, 2007;

interest at 3 50% to 4.75%

- original issue was

$35,235,000. 2,635,000 - 2,635,000 - -

Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authority:

Revenue bond, Series
2007, dve in semiannual
installments ranging from
$3,345,000 to $5,600,000
through October 1, 2014;
interest at 5% - original

issue was $64,245,000 64,245.000 - 4,100,000 60,145,000 8.200.000
Total $67,193773 8 - $6737277 $60456496  $8204017

On February 1, 2007, the Orangeburg Joint Governmental Action Authotity (a blended
component unit) issued $64,245,000 in revenue bonds with an interest rate of 5%. The net
proceeds were 367,154,611 including a premium of $2,909,611 after payment of
$1,077,049 in issuance costs. The premium will be amortized evenly over the life of the
bond
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Annual requirements to amortize revenue bond debt outstanding at June 30, 2008 are
summarized as follows:

Year ended
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2009 $ 8,204,017 $ 2,918,685 $11,122,702
2010 8,204,202 2,508,501 10,712,703
2011 9,004,394 2,088,308 11,092,702
2012 9,004,596 1,638,106 10,642,702
2013 11,204,807 1,160,395 12,365,202
2014 -2018 14,572,560 733,075 15,305,635
2019 - 2023 34,499 55,261 89,760
2024 - 2028 43,186 46,574 89,760
2029 - 2033 54,060 35,700 89,760
2034- 2038 67,673 22.088 89,761
2039 2043 62,502 . 5.504 68,006
0 496 $11.212,197 $ 71,668,693

Notes Payable — The note payable balance at June 30, 2007 is restated to include a note
payable to individuals for $1,192,071. See Note 15 for details on restatement.

Notes payables at June 30, 2008 are composed of the following:

(Restated)
Balance
June 30, 2007

Balance Amount due

Adgitions Retirements  June 30, 2008 in one year

Loan from Lower Savannah
Repgional Development Cot-
poration. The note is to be
repaid over 120 monthly
principal and interest pay-
ments and a balloon pay-
ment due at the end of the

tenth year; interest at 2 5% $ 600,644 $ 33,052

$ 631,041 $ - $ 30,397
Note payable to individuals
for purchase of property. The
note is to be repzid over 12
annual principal and interest
payments and a final payment
due at the end of the
thirteenth year; interest at
3% 1.192.071

Total $1.823.112 $ - $190,397

160,000 1.032.071 100.000

$1,632.715 5£133.052

45




COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

III - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

NOTE 6 -
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Annual requirements to amortize notes payable debt at June 30, 2008 are summarized as
follows:

Year ended
June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2009 $ 133,053 $ 47,101 $ 180,154
2010 183,888 41,765 225,653
2011 184,745 36,408 221,153
2012 185,624 31,030 216,654
2013 945,405 35.613 981,018

$ 1,632,715 $ 191,917 31,824,632

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond and
certificate indentures, such as type of authorized investments, promise to levy tax sufficient
to cover debt service, and establishment of sinking fund, if necessary. The County is in
compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Changes i general long-term liabilities — The following is a summary of debt transactions
of the County for the year ended June 30, 2008:

(Restated)
Balance Balance Antount due
Juae 30, 2007 Additions Retirements June 30, 2008 in one year

General obligation bonds $ 9,645,000 $ 9,715,000 $ 975,000 $ 18,385.000 $ 1,420,000
Deferred amount

on refunding (28,908) - (28,908) - -
Revenue bonds 67,193,773 - 6,737,277 60,456,496 8,204,017
Premium on revenue

bonds 2,751,480 - 379,515 2,371,965 379,515
Notes payable 1,823.112 - 190,397 1,632,715 133,052
Capital leases 9,097,115 2,256,689 2,204,075 9,149,729 2,077,501
Landfill closure and

post-closure costs 268,081 - 10,255 257,826 14,633
Compensated absences 620,343 931,642 644,938 1,207,047 465,821

$91,660.906  £12903.331 §1L112,549 393460778  §12.694,539

The County boundaries also include additional (unaudited) overlapping debt of other
political subdivisions not administered by the County Treasurer. The extent of ovetlap is

100%.
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NOTE 7 -

NOTE 8 -

CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE COSTS OF MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE
LANDFILL

The County operated a solid waste landfill, which it closed in July 1995. On July 1, 1994,
the County adopted GASB Statcment No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Costs, to account for closure and post closure costs
associated with this landfill The South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental

Control (DHEC) requires landfill operators to provide for inspection and maintenance of

the physical characteristics of the site, as well as monitoring and maintenance of the
groundwater and gas monitoring systems and the leachate collection and treatment system,
for a period of thitty years following the closing DHEC also requires that operators cover
the landfill with a minimum cover of certain permeability.

The County liability for closure and postclosure care costs is based on landfill capacity
used to date. Since the landfill was closed as of July 1995, the County considers it to be at
100% capacity. The County paid to cover the landfill in fiscal 1996. Accordingly, long
term liabilities reflect a $257,826 liability for estimated postclosure care costs. This
amount includes a reduction of $10,255 during fiscal year 2008 to reflect one year’s
expenditures for postclosure care. Postclosure care costs are based on engineering
estimates and are subject to change due to inflation, deflation, technology and/or applicable
laws and regulations. Payment for these costs is being made from special revenue funds in
the solid waste fund on a pay-as-you go basis.

NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities and were as follows:

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt:
Net capital assets § 75,130,527
Less: Revenue bonds (60,456,496)
Premium on revenue bonds (2,371,965)
General obligation bonds (18,385,000)
Capital leases (9,149,729)
Notes payable (1,632,715)
Add: Unspent debt proceeds 57.212.273
40,346,895

Restricted for capital activity and debt service:
Restricted cash and receivables

Debt service 10,019,169

Capital proceeds 85,003,808
Less: Unspent debt proceeds (57.212,273)

_37.810,704

Unrestricted 12.285.216

Total net assets $ 90,442,815
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NOTE 9 -

NOTE 10 -

NOTE 11 -

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying
mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities
transfers to the private sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the
State of South Carolina, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, the aggregate principal payable
on these bonds was approximately $17,705,000

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and job related illnesses and accidents. The
County pays premiums to a public entity risk pool for workman’s compensation insmance
and to the State Accident Fund for all other forms of coverage. The public entity risk pool
and the State Accident Fund promise to pay to or on behalf of the insured for covered
economic losses sustained during the policy period in accordance with insurance policy and
benefit program limits. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses for the covered risks. There has been no significant reduction
in coverage and amounts of settlements have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three

years.
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The South Carolina Retirement System and Police Officer’s Retirement System are cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the South
Carolina Retirement Systems, a Division of the State Budget and Control Board The State
Optional Retirement Program (ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an
alternative to certain state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP
participants direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four
investment providers. The SCRS assumes no liability for State ORP benefits, as they are
the liability of the investment providers

Both the SCRS and PORS offer retirement and disability benefits, group life insurance
benefits and survivor benefits. Group life benefits are also available to active State ORP
participants. For fiscal year 2008, a guarantecd one percent cost of living adjustment
(COLA) is funded under SCRS, and al] other cost of living adjustments are granted on an
ad hoc basis, subject to approval by the State Budget and Control Board. Effective July 1,
2008, a guaranteed two percent COLA will be funded under SCRS and PORS and further,
as trustees of the state’s pension trust funds, the Budget and Control Board has the
authority to approve ad hoc COLAs in addition to the guaranteed two percent COLA if
certain guidelines are met The Plans’ provisions are established under Title 9 of the SC

Code of Taws.
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Plan provisions are established under Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws.

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements and required
supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement System and Police Officer’s
Retirement System is publicly available on our website at www.retirement.sc.gov or a copy
may be obtained by submitting a request to the Sonth Carolina Retirement System, PO Box
11960, Columbia, South Carolina 29211-1960.

Both employees and employers are required to contribute to the Plans under authority of

Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws.

Required employee contributions to the Plans for fiscal year 2007-2008 are as follows:

SCRS Class I 5.00% of earnable compensation
SCRS Class I 6.50% of earnablc compensation
PORS Class I $21 per month

PORS Class IT 6.50% of earnable compensation

Required employer contributions for fiscal year 2007-2008 are as follows:

SCRS
Class I 4 25% of earnable compensation
Class IT 9 06% of earnable compensation
Group Life Insurance .015% of earnable compensation
State ORP 4.06% of earnable compensation
PORS
Class1 7 80% of carnable compensation
Class I1 10.30% of earnable compensation
Group Life Insurance 0.20% of earnable compensation
Accidental Death Program 0.20% of earnable compensation

Information as to employer contributions to the plans is as follows:

2006 2007 2008
SCRS PORS  SCRS PORS SCRS PORS

Employer
contributions § 1,045,758  $644,412 § 1,156,475 $663,680 $1,144,238 § 693,895

The County’s 2007 — 2008 contributions 1epresented less then one percent of total

contributions required of all participating entitiecs. Al employers contribute at the
actuarially required contribution rates
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NOTE 12 -

NOTE 13 -

NOTE 14 -

NOTE 15 -

POST RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS

Under terms of the County ordinance, the County provides post-employment health

benefits to employees who retire from service or who terminate with at least 15 years of

service who meet one or more of the eligibility requirements, such as age, length of service,
and hire date Generally, those who retire must have at least five (5) years of retirement
service credit under the South Carolina Retirement System to qualify for benefits. Benefits
are effective at date of retirement or when the employee is eligible for retirement benefits.

The County finances these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis through annual appropriation
During the year ended June 30, 2008, the County paid $119,181 to provide these benefits

for the 48 retired employees who qualified.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The County provides accounting, payroll and cash management service to all three of its
component units. These services are provided at no charge.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Progrtams — Amounts received or receivable from giantol agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by giantor agencies, principally the federal government Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the

grantor cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if

any, to be immaterial

Litigation ~ At June 30, 2008, the County was the defendant in several lawsuits involving
varjous types of claims. Although the outcome of most of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the government’s counsel that resolution of these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.

One lawsuit still pending involves seeking damages to property due to alleged County
negligence. County’s legal counsel expects a 60% or greater chance of prevailing in the
case due to the evidence. If the County should not prevail in the case, the estimated
liability is in the range of $73,500 to $300,000. This case is being handled by the State’s
Insuiance Reserve Fund.

PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Net Fund
Assets Balance
Fund Balance as previously
reported, June 30, 2007 $ 85,388,395 $ 106,780,833
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NOTE 15— PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Net Fund
Assets Balance
General Fund
Unrecorded prior year receivable
for reimbursement of DPU’s
share of industrial patk expenditures 177,871 177,871
Correct payables from year 2006
posted as 2007 expenditures
rather than against 2006 payables 35,954 35,954
Correct paytoll liability accounts (487,228) (487,228)
Reclass prior year expenditures
to propet fund 5,764 5,764
Correct prior years’ rent
receivables 13,266 13,266
Correct receivables 42,020 42,020
Correct for County’s share
of prior years” allocation
to LEC due to actual
expenditures exceeding
budget (1.301,294) (1,301,294)
Genetal Fund total _(1,513.647) (1.513.647)
Capital Projects Sales Tax I
Conect prior year accounts payable 110,757 110,757
Reclass prior year expenditures to
proper fund (5.764) (5.764)
Capital Projects Sales Tax [ total 104,993 104,993
Capital Projects Sales Tax IT
Reclass prior year expenditures to
proper fund (253,024) (253,024)
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II1 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continuved)

NOTE 15—~ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Net Fund
Assets Balance
Road and Bridges Maintenance
Correct prior year accounts payable 55.502 55,502
Solid Waste
Cortect priot year accounts payable (46.443) (46.443)
Legislative Delegation Economic
Development Projects
Correct posting of principal and
interest due on note payable to
accounts payable ~ governmental
funds do not record long-term
liabilities and government-wide
statements do not record interest
portion of debt 200,659 1,392,730
Grant Subfunds
Correct for priot year revenue
recorded in receivable account
when received but receivable
never booked —unrecognized
revenue 5,662 5,662
Correct for unrecorded priot
year accounts payable (2,702) (2,702)
Correct for revenue not
recorded against receivable
when received in subsequent
year (25,708) (25,708)
Grant Subfunds total (22.748) (22,748)
FEMA Winter Storm
Correct for prior yeat
receivable recorded in error (119,804) (119.804)
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cortinued)

NOTE 15— PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Certified Sites

Correct for prior year
receivable recorded in error

Pathways

Correct for unrecorded
receivables

Capital Improvements Fund

Correct priot year accounts
payable

Reclass prior year expenditures
to proper fund

Remove land hcld for resale
which was sold in 2005

Capital Improvements Fund total
2004 Vehicle Replacement

Record cash held by fiscal
agent

Capital Assets

Correct for unrecorded
Capital Assets

Correct prior year
accumulated depreciation

Capital Assets total
Total prior period adjustments

Fund Balance, as restated,
June 30,2007

33

Net
Assets

(180.,000)

101,193

11,070

253,024

(134.229)

129.865

20,588

1,115,823

(889.276)
226,547

_(1.296.319)

$ 84,092,076

Fund
Balance

(180.000)

101,193

11,070

253,024

(134.229)

125,865

20.588

(330.795)

$106,450,038



.COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
111 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
NOTE 15—~ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Agency Funds beginning balances were restated at July 1, 2007 as follows:

As Previously
Stated Restate- AS restated
July 1, 2007 ment July 1, 2007
Clerk of Court Trust Fund
Assets:

Cash $ 845497 $ (5101 $ 840,396
Total Assets $ 845497 $ (5,101 $ 840,396
Liabilities

Due to General Fund $ - $ 17,418 $ 17,418

Due to Genetal Fund — overage/(deficit) - 69,812 69,812

Due to others 845,497 _(92.331) 753,166
Total Liabilities $ 845497 $ (5.101) $ 840396

Family Court Trust Fund
Assets:

Cash $ 50612 ) - $ 50612
Total Assets $ 50612 $ - $_ 50612
Liabilities

Due to General Fund $ - 3 2,835 $ 2,835

Due to General Fund — overage/(deficit) - (10,113) (10,113)

Due to others 50,612 7.278 57,890
Total Liabilities § 50612 $ - $ 50,612

Magistrate’s Trust Fund
Assets: _

Cash $ 212,833 $ (4.873) $ 207960
Total Assets $ 212833 § (4,873) $ 207,960
Liabilities

Due to General Fund $ - $156,047 $ 156,047

Due to General Fund — overage/(deficit) - 2,390 2,390

Due to others 212.833 (163.310) 49,523
Total Liabilities § 212833 8§ (4,873) $_ 207,960

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The County paid the entire outstanding principal balance of $1,032,071 and interest of

$30,962 on note payable to individual in the subsequent fiscal year. The note was
scheduled to be repaid incrementally thiough August 2015.
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
II1 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
NOTE 17—~ COMPONENT UNIT PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The restatement of fund balances at June 30, 2007 for the component units are as follows:

Orangeburg County Public Library:
Statement of

Net Assets Balance Sheet
Governmental = Governmental
Activities Funds
Unrestricted Unreserved,
Net Assets Undesignated
Beginning balance — as previously reported
June 30, 2007 $ 342,314 $ 374,742
To remove liabilities and fund balance
reported by Orangeburg County 26,171 26,171
Restated $368.485 $400.913
Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center:
Beginning of year — as originally reported $ (1,587,105) $ (1,440,077
To correct for account payable errors in
the beginning balance 10,487 10,487
To remove unsubstantiated liability which
has been on ledge: since prior to 2000 53,520 53,520
To record receivable from Calhoun County
duc to underfunding the budget —
unrecorded portion applicablc to prior years 74,776 74,776
To adjust payable to Orangeburg County
due to underfunding the budget —
unrecorded portion applicable to
prior year 1,301,294 1,301.294
Beginning balance — as restated 3 (147,028) A -
Net assets of Business-type Activities at
Jure 30, 2007 were not restated $.109.215
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COUN1Y OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-1

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENERAL FUND
BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FUNE 30, 2008
GAAP to Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Budget Actuat Final Budget
Actual Differences Buidgetary Positive
Original Final GAAP Raais Over (Under) Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 20706524 $ 20706524 $ 21312478 S - $ 21312478 3 605 954
Intergovernmental revenue - Note 4 6415083 6415083 6746 356 - 6746 356 331273
Licenses ard permits 813000 813,000 653242 - 653 242 (159.758)
Charges for services
Emergency Medical Scrvices 1,110 000 1 110 000 1379430 - 1379430 269 430
Other 140,000 140,000 112.902 - 112902 (27 098)
Fines, fees and forfeitures 1979831 1979 831 2.)52 841 - 2.152 84) 173010
Investment income 675573 675573 376 358 - 376 358 (299215)
Other 891,880 891,880 294,093 - 294,093 (597,787)
Total revenues 32,731,891 32,731,891 33,027,700 - 33,022,700 295,809
EXPENDII URES
General government
Executive 304 190 304 190 314,541 - 314 541 (10.351)
Administrator 887589 889 746 966 882 - 966 882 (717.136)
County attorney 136,100 136,100 193 218 . 193 218 (57 118)
Personnel 293.011 293011 299073 - 299.073 (6,062)
Voter registration 162 092 165.559 147937 - 147 937 17,622
Election Commission 368,763 365,296 194 639 522 195,161 170.135
Delinquent tax collector 260,709 273563 286 274 - 286274 (12.711)
Treasurer 350483 350483 313550 - 313,550 36933
Finance 395,146 396.412 385728 - 385.728 10684
Auditor 235333 2351333 236995 - 236 995 (1662)
Tax asscssor 792 447 792 447 712435 - 712435 . 80012
Data processing 1,025 680 1,145 680 999,371 3424 1002 795 142 885
Planning and building inspections 703 986 704 220 851 847 - 854 847 (150 627)
Orangeburg County Development Commission 718 103 718,103 735 063 - 735063 (16 960)
Purchasing 158998 158 998 177026 - 177 026 (18.028)
Register of Deeds 278421 278421 258391 962 259 353 19 068
Other 3,892,312 5,843,462 3,569,863 278 3,570,141 2,273,321
Total general government 10,963,763 13,051,024 10,645,833 5,186 10,651,019 2,400,005
Judicial
Clerk of court 323435 523435 284 500 - 284,500 38935
Family court 515604 515.604 513409 - 513 409 2195
Master-in-equity 126 911 126 911 140 054 - 140,054 (13.143)
Probate Court e 122129 333814 - 333814 (11.685)
Magistrates 1178773 1182973 1.213 345 797 1214 142 (31 169)
Public Defender 476 950 476 950 3572713 - 357713 119237
Solicitor 604,958 604 958 604,958 - 604,958 -
Total judicial 3,548,760 3,552,960 3,447,793 797 3,448,590 104,370
Public works
Building and Grounds 102717 1044.691 1 099,373 - 1,099 373 (54.682)
Sign shop 51,930 51,930 53,479 - 53,479 (1,549)
Total public works 1,075,101 1,096,621 1,152,852 - 1,152,852 (56,231)
Public safety
Sherift 5872 645 5872645 6618772 - 6618772 ©(746.127)
E-911 communications center 606,139 606 139 557921 13456 snan 34762
Emergency Medical Services 33178044 3378,044 3253 106 5.586 3262692 115352
Coroner 260 832 295611 249 346 - 249346 46,265
Lease payment for Detention Center - Note - - 40,619 - 40,619 (40,619)
Total public safety 10,117,660 10,152,439 10,719,764 23,042 10,742,806 (590,367)
Sociat and health
Health services 766.389 778389 839560 - 839.560 (61171)
Animal control 292472 284,172 202322 - 2025322 81,850
Allocations to social agencies 204,300 204,300 274,067 - 274,067 (69,767)
Total social and health 1,263,161 1,266,861 1,315,949 - 1,315,949 (49,088}
(continued)
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EXPENDII URES, Continued
Internal services
Vehicle maintenance
Total internal services

Culture and recreation
Regreation
Total culture and recreation

Allocations to others
Law Enforcement Center
Others
Totat allocations to others

Non-budgeicd expenditures
Capital lease financing
Total non-budgeted expenditurcs

Debt service
Principal retirement
Tmterest and fiscal charges
Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {(under expenditures)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease financing
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances. beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Fund balances beginning of year as restated

Fund balances, end of year

COUN1Y OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Exhibit B-1

Encumbrance for capital outtay and supplies ordered but not received is reported in the

year the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year

the cepital items and supplics are received for GAAP purposes

Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP 10 budget

57

s (29,025)
S @os)

GENERAL FUND
BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2008
GAAP to Varlance with
Budgeted Amounts Budget Actua) Final Budget
Actual Differences Budgetary Posltive
Original Final GAAP Basis Over (Under) Basis (Negative)
608,199 608,199 533,840 - 533,840 74,359
608,199 608,199 533,840 - 533,840 74,359
194,335 194,335 189,169 - 189,169 5,166
194,335 194,335 185,169 - 189,169 5,166
3904423 3904423 4430 586 - 4430586 (526 163)
1,052,489 1,052,489 1,039,080 - 1,039,080 13,409
4,956 912 4,956,912 5,469 666 - 5,469,666 (512,754)
- - 2,256,689 - 2,256,689 (2,256,689)
- - 2,256,689 - 2,256,689 (2,256,689)
- - 195 000 - 195000 (195 000)
. - 65,395 - 65395 (65,395)
- 260,395 - 260,395 (260.395)
32,731,801 34,879,351 35,991,950 29,025 36,020,975 (881,229)
- (2.147,460) (2,964,250) (29,025) (2,993.275) (585,420)
- - 2 256 689 - 2,256 689 2.256 689
- 2.147 460 581232 - 581232 (1 566 228)
. - (49.933) - {49.933) (49,933)
- 2,147,460 2,787,988 - 2,787,988 640,528
$ - $ - (176,262) (29,025) (205,287) 55,108
6 258,775 - 6258775
(1,513,647) - (1,513,647)
4745128 - 4,745,128
$ 4568866 S (29.025) S 4,539,841




COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annnal budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of American for the general fund

The General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations by $205,287 for the year ended
June 30, 2008.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND SCHEDULES



MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The capital project sales tax funds (I and II) account for the sale tax revenues that are restiicted to
improve, repait and construct infrastructure for the County.

The following Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual for
the Capital Project Sales Tax [ and II Funds are presented.

The Capital Project 2008 Bond Issue Fund is a major fund for the County but no budget was prepared for
this fund by County Council. Therefore, no schedule is presented.



ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL PROJECTS SALES TAX 1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From inception 2nd for the year ended June 30, 200

8

.Exhibit B-2.

Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
As Restated
REVENUES
Sales tax $ 52,704,200 $§ 53,914,066 $ - 53,914,066
Investment income - 5,065,119 835,604 5,900,723
Total revenues 52,704,200 58,979,185 835,604 59,814,789
EXPENDITURES
General government 3,044,058 2,922,566 658,720 3,581,286
Public woiks 37,833,221 30,082,813 1,614,534 31,697,347
Public safety 2,422,000 2,413,398 - 2,413,398
Culture and recreation 9,404,921 5,646,190 3,556,870 9,203,060
Principal retirement - 5,800,000 2,635,000 8,435,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 325,663 62,581 388,244
Total expenditures 52,704,200 47,190,630 8,527,705 55,718,335
Excess of revenues over expenditures - 11,788,555 (7,692,101) 4,096,454
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital project sales tax
revenue bonds issued - 35,689,347 - 35,689,347
Transfers in - 7,660,201 - 7,660,201
Transfers Out - (38,351,530) (1,050,000) (39,401,530)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 4,998,018 (1,050,000) 3,948,018
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other
financing uses 3 - $ 16,786,573 (8,742,101) 8,044 472
Fund balances, beginning of year 16,681,580
Prior period adjustment 104,993
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 16,786,573
$ 804472

Fund balances, end of year
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL PROJECTS SALES TAX It

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From inception and for the year ended June 30, 2008 _

REVENUES
Sales tax
Investment income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
Public works
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital project sales tax
revenue bonds issued
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and other financing

sources over expenditures and other
financing uses

Fund balances, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated

Fund balances, enad of year

- Exhibit B-3

Project Prior Current Total
Authorization Years Year to Date
As Restated
71,088,020 $ 10,958,469 $ 9,480,018 $ 20,438,487
- 1,195,515 3,474,592 4,670,107
71,088,020 12,153,984 12,954,610 25,108,594
11,034,512 1,832,807 1,048,960 2,881,767
45,007,208 617,010 4,691,214 5,308,224
807,376 357,968 41,795 399,763
14,238,924 258,448 3,018,942 3,277,390
- - 4,100,000 4,100,000
- 557,164 3,212,250 3,769,414
71,088,020 3,623,397 16,113,161 19,736,558
- 8,530,587 (3,158,551) 5,372,036
- 67,154,611 - 67,154,611
- 67,154,611 - 67,154,611

5 75,685,198
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. (3,158,551)

75,938,222

(253,024)
75,685,198

3 72,526,647

$ 72,526,647

i
]
:
|
|
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NONMAJOR FUNDS

The following nonmajor fund schedules include special revenue, capital projects, and debt service fund
types.

Schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance — budget and actual have been prepared
for those nonmajor funds with Council approved budgets.

The special revenue funds are used to account for the procecds of specific revenue sources (other than
special assessments, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

The capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be nsed for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on general long-term debt associated with equipment and facilities owned by the County
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
- NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND '
ROADS AND BRIDGES MAINTIENANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-6 .

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
) Positive
Original Final Actual {(Negative)

REVENUES :
$ 3,150,945 § 3,150,945 $ 2,986,068

$  (164,877)

Charges fo1 services

EXPENDITURES
Public works 3,150,945 3,150,945 3,535,510 (384,565)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (549,442) (549,442)
Net change in fund balance - $ - $ - (549,442) § (549,442)
Fund balances, beginning of year 447,770
Prior period adjustment 55,502
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 503,272

-Fund balances, end of year $

69
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- COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH. CAROLINA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
E911 SURCHARGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
- CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-7

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
State $ - 3 - $§ 155538 8 155,538
Charges for setvices 520,000 520,000 412,205 (107,795)
Total revenue 520,000 520,000 567,743 47,743
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 520,000 520,000 553,822 (33,822)
Total expenditures 520,000 520,000 553,822 (33,822)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 13,921 13,921
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ - 13,921 3 13,921
Fund balances, beginning of year -
5 1391

Fund balances, end of year
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'COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

NEW BROOKLYN LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Exhibit B-8.

Variance with
Final Budget

‘ Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES '
Property taxes $ 13,537  § 13,537  § 6,702  § (6,835)
EXPENDITURES
Public wotks 13,537 13,537 12,703 834
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (6,001) (6,001)
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - (6,001 _§ (6,001)
Fund balances, beginning of year (6,134)
Fund balances, end of year $ (12,135)
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Fund balances, end of year

:COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA . Exhibit B-9.
A NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND ’
SOLID WASTE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

» Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 3,035976 $ 3,035,976 $ 3,215,600 $ 179,624
Intergovernmental: '
State 26,000 26,000 80,494 54,494
Charges for services 1,764,716 1,764,716 1,737,701 (27,015)
Total revenues 4,826,692 4,826,692 5,033,795 207,103
EXPENDITURES
Sanitation 6,601,351 6,601,351 4,966,778 1,634,573
Total expenditures 6,601,351 6,601,351 4,966,778 1,634,573
Excess (deficiency) of 1evenues
over (under) expenditures (1,774,659) (1,774,659) 67,017 1,841,676
' OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 1,774,659 1,774,659 - ' (1,774,659)
1,774,659 1,774,659 - (1,774,659)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 67,017  § 67,017
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,766,615
Prior period adjustment (46,443)
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 2,720,172

5 2,787,189
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- COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
VICTIMS ASSISTANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-10

‘ Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Fines, fees, and fotfeitures $ 120,729 $ 120,720 § 115,720 3 (5,009)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 120,729 120,729 191,442 (70,713)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (75,722) (75,722)
Net change in fund balance $ - 3 - (75,722) § (75,722)
Fund balances, beginning of yea: . (49.897)
Fund balances, end of year $ (125,619)
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COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA Exhibit - 11
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND ’
ACCOMMODATIONS TAX
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget '
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative) !
REVENUES ' ;
Intergovernmental: .
State $ 184,710 $ 184,710 $ 217,481 $ 32,771
Investment income - - 449 449
Total revenue 184,710 184,710 217,930 33,220
EXPENDITURES .
Culture and recreation 184,710 184,710 243,179 (58,469) ,
Excess (deftciency) of revenues ‘
over (under) expenditures - - (25,249) (25,249)
Net change in fund balance $ - 8 - (25,249) § (25,249)
Fund balances, beginning of year " 77,334
Fund balances, end of year . $ 52,085
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'COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BROOKDALE LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-12

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
‘ Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES : ;
Property taxes $ 10,854 10,854 $ 6,586 $ (4,268) !
Total revenue 10,854 10,854 6,586 (4,268)
EXPENDITURES
Public works 10,854 10,854 11,481 627
10,854 10,854 11,481 627
Excess (deficiency) of revenues |
ovet (under) expenditures ) - - (4,895) (4,895)
Net change in fund balance $ - - (4,895) § (4,895)
Fund balances, beginning of year (5,012)
Fund balances, end of year 3 (9,907)
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COUNIY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SPECIAL EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES

Property taxes

Intergovernmental:
State

Charges for services

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Allocation to Library

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fand balances, end of year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-13

Variance with

76

§ (1,006,158)

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Fipal . Actual (Negative)
$ 2,797,339 $ 2,797,339 2,535,737 $ (261,602)
301,768 301,768 22,813 (278,955)
49,000 49,000 - (49,000)
3,148,107 3,148,107 2,558,550 (589,557)
1,982,199 1,952,199 1,819,794 132,405
1,165,908 1,195,908 989,848 206,060
3,148,107 3,148,107 2,809,642 338,465
. - (251,092) (251,092)
§ - $ - (251,092) § (251,092)
(755,066)




.. .COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
' NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
WHITAKER LIGHTING TAX DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Exhibit B-14

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
. Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 51,660 § 51,660 $ 53,695 $ 2,035
EXPENDITURES
Public wotks 51,660 51,660 28,158 23,502
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ‘
over (under) expenditures - - 25,537 25,537
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - 25537 § 25,537
Fund balances, beginning of year (86,947)
Fund balances, end of year (61,410)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Ethihi

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

tB-15

GAAP to Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Budget Actual Final Budget
Actual Differences Budgetary Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis  Over (Under) Basis (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 812835 § 812835 § 806,703 § - 806703 § (6,132)
Intergovernmental 17,165 17,165 17 165 - 17,165 .
Other 1,050,000 1,050,000 800 - 800 (1,049,200)
Total revennes 1,880,000 1,880,000 824,668 - 824,668 (1,055,332)
EXPENDITURES
Public works ~ 1,880,000 6,840,911 2,469,863 80,478 2,550,341 4,250,570
Total expenditures 1,880,000 6,840,911 2,469,863 80,478 2,550,341 4,290,570
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures - (4,960,911) (1,645,195) (80,478) (1,725,673 3,235,238
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 4,960,911 1,050,000 - 1,050,000 (3,910,911)
Transfers out - - (521,759) - (521,759) (521,759)
Net other financing sources (uses) - 4,960,911 528,241 - 528,241 (4,432,670)
Net change in fund balances $ - 3 - (1 116954) (80,478) (1,197432) $ (1,197.432)
—_———
Fund balances, beginning of year 6.463.809 - 6,463,809
Prior period adjustment 129,865 - 129,865
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated 63593,674 - 6,593,674
Fund balances, end of year $ 5476720 § (80,478) 5,396,242
Explanation of Differences:
Encumbrance for capital outlay ordered but not received is reported in the year
the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are reported in the year
the capital items are received for GAAP purposes X $  (80,478)
Net decrease in fund balance - GAAP to budget ‘ $  (80,478)
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.. COUNTY OF.ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA . Exhibit B-16
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND ’
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
' Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,842,999 § 1,842,999 § 1,841,888 $ (1,111
Intergovernmental:
State 40,000 40,000 39,977 (23)
Total revenue 1,882,999 1,882,999 1,881,865 (1,134)
EXPENDITURES
Principal retirement 1,045,574 1,045,574 780,000 265,574
Interest and fiscal charges 837,425 837,425 333,455 503,970
Total expenditures 1,882,999 1,882,999 1,113,455 769,544
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 768,410 768,410
Net change in fund balance $ - $ : - 768,410 $ 768,410
Fund balances, beginning of year ' 206,742
Fund balances, end of year . $ 975,152
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

'

The agency funds account for monies held on behalf of school districts, special districts and othet

agencies that use the County as a depository or property taxes are collected on behalf of the other
governments. !



COMBINING STATE

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISIRICT 3

Assets
Property taxes receivable
Due from General Fund

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

T otal Liabilities

CONSOLIDAIED SCHOOL DISTIRICT 4

Assets
Property taxes receivable
Due from General Fund

Intal Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

1 otal Liabilitics

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISIRIC1 5

Assets
Property taxes receivable
Due from General Fund

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to taxing unit

T otal Liabilities

COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCAIION
Assets

Property taxes receivable

Due from General Fund

Total Assets

Liabilifies
Due to taxing unit

I otal Liabilities

ORANGEBURG CO_UN 1Y . ] Exhibit B-17
MENT OF CHANGES IN ASSEIS AND LIABILIIIES :
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, . Jume 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
$ 3,564 172 s 744,549 3,564,172 744,549
1,161,968 35,131,065 34,819,590 1,473,443
S 4,726,140 $ 35,875,614 38,383,762 2,217,992
$ 4726140 § 35875614 38,383,762 2,217,092
$ 4,726,140 $ 35875614 38,383,762 2,217,992
1

$ - 8 437475 - 437475
3,861,340 40,672,504 40,453,508 4,080,336
$ 3,861,340 $ 41,109,979 40,453,508 4,517 811
$ 3861340 $§ 41,109,979 40,453,508 4,517,811
$ 3861340 § 41109979 40,453,508 4,517,811
$ - g 1,890,651 - 1,890,651
5,183,157 77,012,792 76,162,352 6,033,597
$ 5,183,157 $ 78,903,443 76,162,352 7,924,248
$ 5183157 §  78,003443 76,162,352 7,924 248
$ 5,183,157 $ 78,903,443 76,162,352 7,924,248
$ 525,120 $ 461,478 525,120 461,478
- 8,204,998 8,204,998 -
3 525,120 $ 8,666,4 '76 8,730,118 461,478
$ 525,120 $ 8,666,476 8,730,118 461478
s 525,120 $ 8,666,476 8,730,118 461,478

(continued)
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ORANGEBURG COUNTY Exhibit B-17
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Balance Balance
Tuly 1, June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
|
TOWNS
Assets
Property taxes receivable $ 184,153 3 145,995 184,153 3 145,995 :
Due from General Fund 308 1,701/941 1,703,686 (1,437)
Total Assets $ 184,461 3 1,847,936 1,887,839 % 144,558
Liabilities L
Due to taxing unit S 184461 § 1,847,936 1,887,839 § 144,558 ‘
Total Liabilities $ 184,461  $ 1,847,936 1,887,839  § 144,558
DELINQUENT IAX COLLECIOR » }
Assets )
Cash $ 2208199 § .- 2290,541  $ (82,342)
Investments - 2,034,700 - 2,034,700
T otal Assets $ 2208199 § 2,034,700 2,290,541 8 1,952,358 *
Liabilities
Due to others 3 2,208,199 $ 2,034,700 2,290,541 $ 1,952,358
T otal Liabilities § 2208199 § 2,034,700 2290541 8 1,952,358
SANTEE FIRE FIRE DISTRICT
Assets .
Property taxes receivable s 16,036 $ 16,351 16,036 s 16,351
Due from Generat Fund 8 L. 8 -
Total Assets $ 16044 16,351 16044 S 16,351
Liabilities
Due to taxing unit $ 16,044 237,039 255440 $ (2,357)
Due to General Fund - 239,396 220,688 18,708
Total Liabilities $ 16,044  § 476 435 476,128  § 16351
(continued) '
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] ORANGEBURG COUNTY Ex;ﬂbit B-17
COMB[NING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSEIS AND LIABILITIES o '
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Balance : Balance
July 1, June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008

HOLLY HILL HEALTH AND DRAINAGE '
Assets ,

Property taxes receivable $ 1,033 $ 872 1,033 872
Total Assets $ 1,033 $ 872 1,033 872
Liabilities :

Duc 1o taxing unit $ 1,033 $ 12 680 14,116 (403)

Due to General Fund - 11,808 10,533 1,275
T otal Liabilities $ 1,033 3 24 488 24,649 872
HORSE RANGE WAIER SHED
Assets

Property taxes receivable S 1,671 $ 1.861 1,671 1,861

Due from General Fund 11,085 17,581 6,980 21,686
Total Assets $ 12,756 $ 19,442 8,651 23,547
Liahilities

Due to taxing unit 3 12,756 $ 19,442 8,651 23,547
T otal Liabilities $ 12,756 $ 19,442 8,651 23,547
COW CASTLE DRAINAGE DISTRICT !

Assets

Due from General Fund $ 33,120 $ - - 33,120
Liabilities

Due to taxing unit $ 33,120 $ - - 33,120
SOLICITOR'S FORFEITED BOND FUND
Assets .

Due from General Fund $ 35,971 $ 11,887 17,801 30,057
Liabilities

Due to others $ 35,971 $ 11,887 17,801 30,057
FIREMAN'S INSURANCE PREMIUM FUND
Assets

Cash b - $ 164,537 164,537 -
Liabilities

Due to others 3 - $ 164,537 164,537 -

(continued)
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COMBINING SIATE

CLERK OF COURT BAIL BONDS
Assets
Due from Generat Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

COURI FINES AND ASSESSMENIS
Assets
Due from General Fund

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due from (to) other Agency Funds
Duec to others

T otal Liabilities

SOLICIIOR'S DRUG EUND
Assets
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

CLERK OF COURIT TRUSI FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund
Due to General Fund - overage / (defich)
Due to Special Revenue Fund
Due from (10) other Agency Funds
Due to others

Total Liabilities

_ ORANGEBURG COUNTY Exhibit B-17
MENT OF CHANGES IN ASSEIS AND LIABILITIES ; :
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
S 41,120 § 3,760 - 44,380
Y
$ 41,120 8§ 3,760 - 44,880
]
!
$ 132,388 8 L. 05,595 36,793
$ 132,388 §$ - 95,595 36,793
$ - $ - 112,430 (112,430)
132,388 112,430 95,595 149,223
$ 132,388 $ 112,430 208,025 36,793
$ 16372 § 2,869 - 19,241
$ 16372  § 2,869 - 19,241
¥
Restated .
$ 840,396 § 263,540 212,585 891,351
$ 840,39  $ 263,540 212,585 891,351
$ 17418 8 163,286 170,361 10,343
69,812 337 - 70,199
- 2,181 - 2,181
- 5,551 - 5,551
753,166 82,096 32,185 803,077
$ 840396 § 253,501 202,546 891,351
}
(continued)
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COMBINING STATE

MASTER IN EQUITY TRUST FUND
Assets

Cash

Due from others

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to others

Total Liabilities
PROBATE COURI TRUSI FUND

Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit)
Due to others

Total Liabilities

FAMILY COURI TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit)
Dhue to others

1 otal Liabilities

QKANGEBURG COUNTY =, ) Exhibit B-17
MENT OF CHANGESIN ASSEIS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, . June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
$ 203,323 1,396,804 1,552,732 47,395
- 64,435 - 64,435
$ 203,323 1,461,2'39 1,552,732 111,830
$ 203,323 1,461,239 1,552,732 111,830
$ 203,323 1,461,239 1,552,732 £11,830
$ 355,242 30,284 109,713 275,813
$ 355,242 30,284 109,713 275,813
$ . - 2,433 (2433)
355,242 32,717 109,713 278,246
$ 355,242 32,717 112,146 275,813
|
Restated ’
$ 50,612 12,582,279 12,583,353 49,538
$ 50,612 12,582,2‘79 12,583,353 49,538
$ 2,835 2,339,609 2,339,846 2,598
(10,113) 2,425 - (7.688)
57,890 10,242,669 10,245,931 54,628
$ 50,612 12,584,703 12,585,777 49,538
t
(continued) » l
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MAGISTRAIE'S TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit)
Due to Special Revenue Fund
Due from (to) other Agency Funds
Due to others

Total Liabilities

SHERIF¥- FEDERAL SEIZED PROPERTY
Assets
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

SHERIFF - STAIE SEIZED PROPERTY

Assets
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

SHERIFF - ABANDONED PROPERITY
Assets
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

. . . ORANGEBURG COUNIY
COMBINING STATEM

Exhibit B-17

85

ENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008 ;
Balance Balance
July 1, ! June 30,
2007 Additions; Deductions 2008
1
Restated
S 207,960 § 2,029,190 1,977,058 260,092
$ 207960 § 2,029,190 1,977,058 260,092
$ 156047  § - 51,732 104,315
2390 - 2,977 (587)
. 10.173 - 10,173
- 98,862 - 98,862
49,523 - 2,194 47,329
$ 207960 § 109,035 56,903 260,092
$ 14422 § 1,599 14,432 1,589
S 14422 8 1,599 14,432 1,589
{
kY
.
$ 1,38 § K - 1,389
$ 1380 8 9 - 1,389
!
1
8 6837 8 7,569 13,209 1,197
!
s 6837 § 7,569 13,209 1,197
}
{
1
1]
!
H
i’
)
(contmued) :



" COMBINING STATEM

Register of Deeds
Assets
Cash

1 otal Assets

Liabilities
Duc to General Fund
Due to other Agency Funds

Total Liabilities

SEX OFFENDER REGISIRY
Assets
Due from General Fund

Liabilities
Due to others

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets
Cash
Investments
Property taxes receivable
Due from General Fund
Due from others

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to General Fund
Due to General Fund - overage / (deficit)
Due to Special Reverne Fund
Due from (to) other Agency Funds
Due to taxing vnits
Due to others

Total Liabilites

. ORANGEBURG COUNTY

ENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008

) Exhibit B-17

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008

$ - $ 13,540 - 13,540
3 - $ 13,540 - 13,540
S - $ 5,523 - 5,523
- 8,017 - 8,017
$ - $ 13,540 - 13,540
$ 3152 $ 10,230 5,404 7,978
S 3,152 $ 10,230 5,404 7978
$ 3,865,732 $ 16,480,174 18.890.519 1,455,387
- 2034 700 - 2,034 700
4.292,185 3 699,232 4,292,185 3,699,232
10.502,628 162.778,804 161,497,563 11,783,869
- 64,435 - 64,435
$ 18,660,545 $ 185,057,345 184,680,267 19,037,623
$ 176,300 $ 2,759,622 2,793,160 142,762
62,089 2,812 5410 59,491
- 12,354 - 12,354
- 112,430 112,430 -
14,543,171 166,672,609 165,895,786 15,319,994
3,878,985 14,168,311 14,544274 3,503,022
$ 18,660,545 $ 183,728,138 183,351,060 19,037,623

86




DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

The County has three discretely presented component units.

The Orangeburg County Fire Commission — The Orangeburg County Fire Commission was created in
1997 to provide coordinated fire protection throughout Orangeburg County.

The Orangeburg County Public Library — The Orangeburg County Public Library provides library
services to County residents.

The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center — The Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention
Center houses prisoners for Orangeburg and Calhoun Counties




COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH.CAROLINA

. COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSEIS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS |
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Due from primary government
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to primary government
Long-teim liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilitics

NET ASSEIS
Unrestricted (deficit)

Exhibit B-18

JUNE 30, 2008
Orangeburg-
Orangeburg Orangeburg Calhoun
County County Regional
Fire Public Detention

Commission Library Center Totals
$ 500 $ 359,985 $ 90,939 § 451,424
152,206 - - 152,206
- - 411,533 411,533
694,677 1,775 - 696,452
3,400 - 18,609 22,009
850,783 361,760 521,081 1,733,624
50,098 7,507 148,747 206,352
6,111 - 76,492 82,603
- - 187,250 187,250
14,555 19,772 65,269 99,596
13,435 25,165 93,924 132,524
84,199 52,444 571,682 708,325
766,584 309,316 (50,601) 1,025,299
§ 766,584 § 309,316 $ (50,601) § 1,025,299
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"ORANGEBURG COUNTY; SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPRIETARY COMPONENT UNIT
ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER

_ Exhibit B-20

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues:
Canteen sales
Telephone revenue
Miscellaneous 1evenue

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses:
Wotk release
Administration
Benefit for inmates

Total operating expenses
Change 1n net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

89

$

58,937
52,052
1,948
112,937
15,273
29,347
68,040
113,560
(623)

109,215

108,592




© ., ORANGEBURG COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
. PROPRIETARY COMPONENT UNIT
ORANGEBURG-CALHOUN REGIONAL DETENTION CENTER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received fram customers

Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net Increase (Decrecase) in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year

Recouciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

90

__ Exhibit B-21

$ 95,284
(113,560)
(18,276)
(18,276)
109,215

$ 90,939

$ (623)
(17,653)

$  (18,276)



- COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhibit B-22

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENIED COMPONENI UNIIS
JUNE 30, 2008
Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund
Orangeburg- Orangeburg-
Orangeburg Orangeburg Calhoun Calhoun
County County Regional Regional
Fire Public Detention Detention
Commission Library Center Center Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 506 $ 359985 § - 3 90,939 $§ 451424
Property taxes receivable 152,206 - - - 152,206
Other reccivables - - - 17,653 17,653
Intergovernmental receivable - - 411,533 - 411,533
Due from primary government 694,677 1,775 ) - - 696,452
Other assets 3,400 - 956 ~ 4,356
Total assets $ 850,783 $ 361,760 § 412489 § 108,592 § 1,733,624
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 50,098 $ 7,507 § 148,747 $ - $ 206,352
Accrued salaries and benefits 6,111 - 76,492 - 82,603
Deferred revenue - Property taxes 127,967 - - - 127,967
Due to primary government - - 187,250 - 187,250
Total assets 184,176 7,507 | 412,489 - 604,172
Fund Equity
Fund balances
Unreserved, unrestricted (deficit) 666,607 354,253 - 108,592 1,126,452
Total fund equity 666,607 354,253 - 108,592 1,129,452
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 850,783 $ 381,760 $ 412489  $ 108,592  § 1,733,624
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.. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES -
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCREIELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the year ended June 30, 2008

REVENUE
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Payments to other governments - Note 4

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Fund balances, beginning of year as restated

Fund balances, end of year

Exhibit B-23

Orangeburg-
Orangeburg Orangeburg Calhoun
County County Regional
Fire Public Detention
Commission - Library Center Totals
$ 2,397,771 $ - 3 - 8§ 2,397,771
- 1,217,647 5,304,594 6,522,241
19,324 685 - 20,009
6,813 61,831 - 68,644
2,423,908 1,280,163 5,304,594 9,008,665
2,082,351 - 5,263,975 7,346,326
- 1,326,823 - 1,326,823
260,395 - 40,619 301,014
2,342,746 1,326,823 5,304,594 8,974,163
81,162 (46,660) - 34,502
81,162 (46,660) - 34,502
585,445 '374,742 (1,440,077) (479,890)
- 26,171 1,440,077 1,466,248
585,445 400,913 - 986,358
$ 666,607 $§ 354,253 $ - $ 1,020,860

92



SCHEDULE REQUIRED
BY STATE LAW.

The schedule of fines, assessments, and surcharges pertaining to court collections is presented as required
by the State of South Carolina '



.. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH.CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS, AND SURCHARGES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - VICTIMS' SERVICES FUND

. Exhibit B24 .

JUNE 30, 2008
Clerk of Coutt‘ Magistrates Total
Court Fines
Counrt fines collected $ 224,460 1,419,520 1,643,980
Court fines retained by County 23,159. 907,900 931,059
Court fines remitted to State Treasuret $ 201,301 » 511,620 712,921
Court Assessments
Court assessments collected $ 21,768 ‘ 421,259 443,027
Court assessments retained by County 4,805 65,068 69,873
Court assessments remitted to State Treasurer $ 16,963 356,191 373,154
Court Surcharges
Court surcharges collected $ 25,155 20,692 45,847
Court surcharges retained by County $ 25,155 . 20,692 45,841_
Victims Services
Court assessments allocated to Victim Services 3 4,805 65,068 69,873
Court surcharges allocated to Victim Services 25,155 - 20,692 45,847
Funds allocated to Victim Services $ 29,960 85,760 115,720
Victim Services expenditures (191,442)
(75,722)

Beginning balance - July 1, 2007 (49,897)
Excess of expenditures over revenue

for current year (75,722)
Ending Balance - June 30, 2008 (125,619)
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of the County’s comprehensive annual financial report represents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s
financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the 1eader assess the County’s most significant

revenue source.,

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ablhty to issue additional debt
in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information \
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader undetstand the

envircnment within which the County’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information ;
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
tnformation in the County’s financial repott relates to the services the County provides and
the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year .
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. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA . Table10 -

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

General Percentage of
Obligation Actual Taxable Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Total Value of Property Capita
1999 8,650,000 8,650,000 3.77% 99
2000 7,595,000 7,595,000 321% 86
2001 6,510,000 6,510,000 2.72% 71
2002 5,615,000 5,615,000 233% 61
2003 4,715,000 4,715,000 196% 51
2004 12,445,000 12,445,000 5.03% 135
2005 11,535,000 11,535,000 4.66% 125
2006 10,600,000 10,600,000 4.38% 114
2007 9,645,000 9,645,000 3.99% 104
2008 18,385,000 18,385,000 791% 199

Source: County Treasurer, J Steve Summers
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COUNTY.OF, ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

" "DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

As of June 30, 2008

Governmental Unit

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Orangeburg County
Orangebuig School District 3
Orangeburg School District 4
Orangeburg School District 5

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: County Treasurer, J. Steve Summers

Debt

Outstanding

18,385,000
37,880,000
35,842,671
39,735,000
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Table 11 |
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Percentage Overlapping
Applicable Debt
100.00% 3 18,385,000
100.00% 37,880,000
100.00% 35,842,671
100.00% 39,735,000

§ 131,842,671




SIDWIMNG 9AA]S [ IAINSEIL] AJUNOY [20IN0G

SM]BA PISSISSE JO 9,8 T8 PAIBNIRD)

R ——
950'980'¢  § urem 1gop (€3]
000'0%6'91 wuny 03 3(qeordde 193p 131 130,
" 000°SPY'1 WNpUaral Aq
] PAPNJIXA 193(T 53T
000°$8€'8I Spuoq uarjediqo feIsuan
’ s o1 o[quondde 193
7 950°970°0C (onrea passasse Jo o, §) uWIY 1937
pOLSTE0ST $ suonduraxe Jo J9N - N[EA PISSISSY
s 800T 1va X [BISI] 40}
. uongnd[e)) uISIBRy 149 [
%06'v8 %0S'th %178 %STTI9 %ST 98 %96'E1 %08°LE %9V vy %SEYS %6879 M 1q3p jo afejusatad 8 sa
: . g au3 03 a[qeandda 1gap 1au (@307,
950980t §  p0S'S6£°01 § P8ELYS'L §  8VP966'9 §  LVB'RS6L §  TTSTEIWIS  L99'6SE6 §  3SRTICI'S §  OLESLEO $ $S6'E0IT § widsew jgop [eda]
000°0¥6°91 000'500°8 000°009°01 000°SE£S 11 000°0LZ°01 000°'SLE'T 000'S19°S 000°015%9 000°56S°L 000°059°8 g 0] 2fqratdde 198(T 19U 1moy,
950'9Z0°0T§  bOS'00¥'81S  PBELYISLS  BYYIESSLS  LPS'SSTBLS  TTSLOOLIS  LI9VLEPIS  BSBIYOVIS  OLEWLE'CT §  8S6'ESLCT S sy iaeq
- x8007 *L00T #9007 »S00Z «P00T +£007 «2007 »100T x0007 x6661T
’ SHVIA TVOSIA NAL LSVT
. NIDYVI 1930 TVOAT
TIaqelL YNITOAYD HLAO0S “QANTIINVIOQ 10 ALNNOD

106




%05°01

"OU] “SOURI][Y ITWOUOdY APUNWIWOY) :90IN0Y

- £68°81 7661591 S79°L8 6661
%06'L - - T1L°61 LO6'TELT $98°L8 0002
%0€ €1 0LEST - SLL°OT 919°206°1 785°16 1002
%08°8 001°S1 - LYS1T LIEEL6'T 785°16 2002
%0€°01 £86'71 €€ STETT 895 vH0°T 785°16 €007
%06'01 LS9V] - 181°€T 81EGETT S11°26 7002
%026 PIvEl - 890 901°62T°7 L19°C6 $00¢
%0£°6 LLTTT - 0667C 66V VIE€T L19°C6 9002
%00° 11 991 9¢ L00°ST £TSPIET $SS°T6 L00Z
%0901 LEE9T SE 87T 708°09€°C 6LY°T6 8002
ey JuduIoLuy a8y awoduy (spuesnoy) m) uoyzmdog A83X
ﬁ.vE%O—QEo:D _oo-—um weIpatAl _wnom.-cm uroduy
wyde) a0g L (IS ER
SUVAX IVANTTVO NAL LSVT
SOILSILV.LS DIAONODH ANV DIHIVIDOWAA
€1 9198

VAI'TOUVO HLNOS “OdNgIONVIO 40 ALNNOD

107



%L0°9

L19%s

VNI'TOUVD HLAOS ‘“OUNgIONYIO JO AINNOD

[e10],

01 - %220 01 00T widjoH
6 - %970 6 LET Auedwo)) ajuodQ oYL,
3 - %S¢0 8 (44> uoyesodio)) Surewaq[y
L - %P0 L 0ov $3101PO1J UCKHILLY [NTOJN [e1opa ]
9 - %EH'0 9 00% ouf ‘esixdiayug a1y payj|y
S - %610 S oSy "oU] s10npoL{ [elnsnpuy snd7
1% - %150 1 86v £ I81u9) uouNqLISI(y uot poo,]
€ - %850 3 9¢¢ dnoip Arayeq 9o eres
z - %29'0 z LS VSN Jo dioy okoy
I - %91°C I 000°C vureAbsny

T juomAoduny Huey saafordwry juowfojduy Huwy sadfodury Jafojdmy

| A&yjuno)) [Bjo1, Jo Ayuno)) (8307, JO

.- - deyudarag adejuadiag

, 6661 8007

0DV SYVIA ANIN ANV dVIX INTHIND
. SHTAOTAINA TVIIONIId
. plAqel

108



VNITOUVD HLOOS ‘“DUNGAONVIO 40 ALNNOD

(8101,

UOTe3193Yy pue AN
s 21qnd

SO 21qnd

Ayogeg otjqnd
JUSWUIIA0S [BISUSD)

weagoag/uonuny

608 6¥S ILS - B - - - -
- - Wm - - - - - -
T 9% TS - - - - - -
"6 001 18 - - - - - -
£61 §TT (444 - - - - - -
el 8LI 91 - - - - - -
-800¢ LO0T 9007 S007 $00T €007 7001 1007 0007 6661
0 dunp Jo Se sadsoidwry JUIEAIMDY surr ], g
SAVHA TVOSIA NAL ISV'T
A AVIO0Ud / NOLLONNA X9 STIAOTIIAHE INTWNITAOD AINNOD INTTVAINOT ANIL-TINA
-STRIqEL

109



uorouny ToTEa0Y PUR NN pus UOIoUM] YeOH Pue (81305 UOHIUN SMI0M 91[qid d1) 10] S[qe[IRA® JOU AIe $J01eITPU]

tuowpeda(q Soweut] juno) SingasSueiQ Aq papiaoid uonenLIojul uoyEIIES

[[eustepy ax] Ajmo)) Singasuei(g Aq papiaoid uonzuLojul 2317

Jusumredo(] sJFueqs Aumo)) 81ngaueip Aq papiaoid moneurtout 891[0d

juauredoqg Sunurad Auno) Smaeduri() Aq papiaoid siuuad Sutpimg
1991N0g

L007Z 12aK TEISIJ 03 I0TId S[QB[IBAE J0U UOYEUWIIOJUL,

91 91qe],

6Ep z6p . . . . ] - . " $UN029Y SISEA\ FATIOY JO J2qUINN
- ’ uonepueg
* * * * * * * * PIONPUOY) SUOTESNISIAU] JO JoqumN]
. * * * * * * N % pajonpuo)) suondadsuj 30 JsqumpN
186°¢ 016'S * * * * * * * * PIIIMSUY S[[BD) JO JB3GUWNN
» ang
“TrS'El 896°C1 * * % * * * * * 991A138 107 S[j2D
SWd
959°1¢€ 1€5°L1 * * * * % * * * 321AT0S 10] S|[2))
) * * * * * * * + al[od
Aiageg o1qng
STt o6l * * * * * * * % synurted Suippmng jo saquiny
: CIELET )
- 8007 L00T 9007 $007 $007 €007 7007 100T 0002 6661
, AB3A [€ISI]
SYVAA TYISIA NAL LSV1
NVAOOAUI/NOLLONNA A9 SHO.LVOIANI ONILVIAdO

VNI'TOU VI HLNOS "DANGIADNVIEO 40 ALNNOD

110



UONOUN] YIESH PUE [er00S PUE UOHOUT JUSULIIA0G) [RISUSN) 10) S[QR[IBAE 10U AJ¢ SI018IIPUL

Io3uwy yred Liuno) SingaSuerg £q papiroid uonrmUOUl Yied
weunieda sgIuays Auno)) 3ingaduri( Aq papraold uonRULIOJUT 331[0d
ITeusIey a1 Lunop) SinqaguerQ £q papiroid voypuLoyur o114

192100§

£007 294 [easy 03 Joud S[qe[IeAE 10U UCHPULIOJU]

S€ - St * % * * * * * * 93ea108 Sy
UOREa10aY 29 AN
4. —
206 1433 ¥ * * % * * * x (so1ur) speos psAedun -
peurviuIBWL 31BI§ pue AUno)
$68°1 LO8'1 * * * * N * * * (sa1rur) speor poaed
o pauleiurew aje)g pue Auno)
SHoMm AMqnd
L S * * ¥ ] * * * * (suonezsqns Suipnjoun) suoyels 391]0d
£Ic - LLT * * % * * * ¥ * §9)9140A 991(0d
v 14 * * * . * » * . suoness SN
st 949 * * ¥ » * * * * SuonE)s 2314
Aiayeg atgngd
8007 L00T 9007 S00T ¥00¢ £00¢ 00T 1002 0002 6661
o Jea X [8osiy
SYVIX TVOSII NAL LSYT
NOILON(A A9 SOLLSILV.LS LASSV TV.LIAVD

- LI9IqBL

VNI'TOHYD HLOOS ‘DYNIAINVIO 40 ALNNOD



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



. - COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA .
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's Total
Federal Grant/Pass Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through S.C. Department of Commerce
SC Water and Sewer - GIS Mapping Project 14 228 4-ED-05-09 $ 28,607
Community Development Block Grant
Bowman Water Upgrade 14228 4-CI-06-005 342,555
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Edward Byrne Memorial Grant 16 710 2005DJBX1224 25,383
Edward Byrne Memorial Grant 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-1386 13,124
Violent Offender Incarceration and Truth in
Sentencing Incentive Grant 16 586 V0104 39,443
DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed throngh S.C Department of Social Services
Pathways Substance Abuse Grant 93 243 5-UDI-T115977-04 74,044
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Homeland Security Grant 97 067 2005-GE-15-0018 889
LEMPG 97042 - TEMPGO1 33,321
Citizens Corps. 97 067 6CCPO1 8,383
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUL TURE
Passed through S.C Department of Social Services
At Risk After School Program 10 558 17,056
NATIONAL OCEAN AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION
Passed through S C. Budget and Control Board
Statewide Mapping and LIS Program 11 400 NAO4NOS4000162 46,000
Statewide Mapping and LIS Program 11400 NAO6NOS4000006 24,000
$ 652,805
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NOTE A-

COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR END JUNE 36, 2008

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal
grant activity of County of Orangeburg and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic
financial statements.
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AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS » SOUTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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1906-1968 8 T. Kight, CPA € C Inabinet. CPA J P McGuire, CPA G N Mondy, CPA G A Farmer, CPA
G.D Skipper, CPA SS. Luoma CPA LH Kelly CPA . M.L tayman CPA C D Hinchee, CPA
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To County Council
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina (the County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 30, 2009 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County’s inteinal control over financial reporting Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.

Out consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessatily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the County’s ability to initiate, authorize, 1ecord, process,
or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that
there is more than a remote likelthood that a misstatement of the County’s financial statements that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the County’s internal contiol. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
2008-1 through 2008-27 to be significant deficiencies in internal contiol over financial reporting,

(803) 787-0003
fax (BC3) 787-2299

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA
1190 Boulevard Street (803) 259-1163
Orangeburg, SC 29115 fax (803) 259-5469

114 (B03) 536-1015

fax (803) 536-1020

WWW mcgregorcpa com




A material weakness is a significant deficiency, o1 combination of significant deﬁcienci?s, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s inteinal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant
deficiencies described above, we consider items 2008-9 to 2008-27 to be material weaknesses

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our andit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and tesponses as Item 2008-2.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County of Orangeburg, South
Carolina in a separate letter dated April 30, 2009.

The County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s response to the findings identificd in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them

This report is intended for the information of the County Council, management, federal awarding
agencies, and pass through entities and is not intended to be and should not used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Me %uﬁm ¢ Co. LLP

Orangeburg, South Carolina
April 30, 2009

115
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To County Council
County of Orangeburg, South Carolina

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the County of Orangeburg (the County) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the US Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008 The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
anditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our andit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of Ametica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the type of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

ORANGEBURG BARNWELL COLUMBIA

1190 Boulevard Straet {803) 259-1163 (803) 787-0003

Orangeburg, SC 29115 fax (B03) 259-5469 fax (B03) 787-2299
116 (803) 536-1015

fax (803) 536-1020 WWW mcgregorcpa com
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
progiam in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance but, not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such
that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirements
of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by any entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose desctibed in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses We did not identify any deficiencies in
_ internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended for the information of the County Council of Orangeburg County,

management and federal and state awarding agencies and pass through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ne ,L’:J-LL,VA g Ce. LLP
{

Orangeburg, South Carolina
April 30, 2009
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I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statemcnts

. COUNTY OF QRANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA -
‘SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

(a.) Type of auditors’ report: Unqualified
(b.) Intemnal control over financial reporting: i

1) Material weaknesses identified: Nineteen

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not

Considered to be material weaknesses: Eight

(c.) Noncompliance matetial to financial statements noted: One
Federal Awards
(a) Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weaknesses identified: None

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not

Considered to be material weaknesses: None

(b) Type of auditois® 1eport issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
{c.) Audit findings that are required to be reported in

accordance with Section 510(a) of CircularA-133: None
(d.) Identification of major program:

Name of federal
CFDA Numbers program or cluster
14228 CDBG Bowman Water Upgrade

(e.) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B programs: $300,000
(f) Auditec qualified as low risk auditee? No
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.COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS'
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS':

2008-1 Fund Balance Deficits

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: During 2008 expenditures exceeded the revenues in six funds which increased the
funds’ fund balance deficits. All funds should be reviewed routinely to ensure funds are available
prior to approval of expenditures. The County should consider means to fund these deficits and

cease increasing them. The funds are listed below:

2008 Excess June 30, 2008

of Expenditures Fund
Fund over Revenues Deficit
Road and Bridges Maintenance $ (549,442) 3 (46,170)
New Brooklyn Lighting Tax District (6,001) (12,135)
Victims Assistance (75,722) (125,619)
Brookdale Lighting Tax District (4,895) (9,907)
Special Education (251,092) (1,006,158)
Edisto Sewer Capital Projects (55,100) (465,485)

In addition, the Whitaker Lighting Tax District has a fund deficit of $61,410 and the Economic
Development Tobacco Fund has a fund deficit of $202,049 at June 30, 2008. The fund deficits in
these two funds did decrease during the 2008 year, but a fund deficit still remains.

The Sheriff’s Traffic Enforcement grant closed in 2007 but additional expenditures were charged
in 2008 to thts fund which increased the fund deficit. During our audit procedures, we noted the
increasing deficit and the County decided to reclass these expenditures of $2,885 to the Sheriff
dcpartment of the General Fund and close the fund by recording a transfer from the General Fund

of $21,735.

Criteria: Funds should be reviewed before incurring expenditures to make sure funds are
available.

Effect: When expenditutes are incurred where revenues are not sufficient to cover, fund deficits
occur,

Recommendation: We recommend all funds be reviewed before incursing expenditures. Means
of funding these fund balance deficits need to be addressed.
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. COUNTY OF ORAVGEBURG SOUTH CAROLINA N
SCHEDU'LE OF FINDINGS AND QUFSTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-1 Fund Balance Deficits (continued)

Significant Deficiency

Response: As to the Roads and Bridges Fund, on an annual basis vehicle fees are insufficient to
cover operating costs and County supplements with a transfer from the genctal fund. Also
equipment logs arc not turned in to post rcvenue to said fund until after the completion of
paving/road work on roads whereby penny funds are transfetred in to offset expenditures. As to
New Brooklyn Lightning Tax District and Brookdale Lighting Tax District, with millage caps
authorized under Act 388, the County is limited in setting millage by the cost of living factor and
the difference is covered via transfer from the general fund. As to the Victims Assistance Fund,
revenues are in decline and consequentially budget and schedule of activities are being reduced in
order to match with available revenue. As to the Edisto Sewer Capital Projects Fund, the County
is reviewing user fees for systems on this project and 1ates will be adjusted to cover operating
requirements of fund. As to the Whitaker Lighting Tax Distiict, millage is sufficient to cover
start up costs; however, expenditures began before revenues came in. As to the Sheriff’s Tiaffic
Enforcement grant, incident was noted last fiscal year and a correction was made at that time and
will generate any remaining journal entry to close out said fund balance.

2008-2 Uncollateralized and Uninsured Deposits

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The cash on deposit with one financial institution is uncollateralized and uninsured
by $299,560.

Criteria: Agreements should be in place with all financial institutions which hold County funds
to collateralize its deposits at all times,

Effect: The County’s deposits were uninsured and uncollateralized by $299,560 at June 30,
2008.

Recommendation: We recommend the County review all agreements with financial institutions
for collateral and the current value of the assets held as collateral to make sure the value pledged
is sufficient to cover the deposits of the County.

Response: Per the County Treasurer: We will cover this matter. With regard to overall cash
activity this is immaterial.
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;. .COUNTY OF i)RANG_EBiJRG,_SOUTH CAROLINA .
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2008-3 Preparation of Financial Statements

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: In May 2006, the AICPA issued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 112,
Communication Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. This standard,
emphasizes the need for the County to have internat controls over financial reporting in place that
will provide reasonable assurance that the County’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to
be effective, County personnel needs to receive adequate training to allow them to prepare the
County’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

Criteria: Internal contiols over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable
assurance that financial statements are ptepared in accordance with GAAP.

Effect: Because County personnel have not received adequate training in preparing financial
statements in accordance with GAAP, a material misstatement to the County’s financial
statements could occur and not be prevented or detected by the County’s internal controls over

financial reporting,

Recommendation: Appropriate County personnel should attend training courses that will
enhance their ability to prepare the County’s annual financial statements and footnote disclosures
in accordance with GAAP. Assuming that this training is provided within the next six to eight
months, County personnel should coordinate with the independent audit firm to prepare a
substantial portion of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30,

2009. ;

Response: The County’s Finance Director and Accounting Manager have attended training by
the GFOA in February 2009 for the purpose of meeting said GAAP requirements. They will also
attend more training seminars this year as they become available.

2008-4 Register of Deeds Office - Receipts

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: In total, the funds collected in the Register of Deeds office agice to the amounts
turned over to the Treasurer’s office, but the allocation between cash and checks per the
receipting system do not agree with the allocation turned over to the Treasurer’s office. Also,
collections are not being turned over daily to the Treasurer’s office Cases of several days lapse
between collection and remittance occurred.

Criteria: Cash and checks should be turned over to the Treasurer’s office daily intact and should
agree with the breakdown of cash and checks in the receipting system.
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. . COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2008-4 Register of Deeds Office — Receipts (continued)

Effect: Appears funds from one day’s deposits may be uscd to make the deposit from a previous
day with cash used to “make up” the difference.

Recommendation: We recommend each day’s collections be reconciled with the receipt reports
and twuned over to the Treasurer’s office daily

Response: Requirements for daily cash deposits have been implemented as of December 2008.
An administrative dircctive was given to the Register of Deeds for daily deposits of receipted
funds.

2008-5 Delinquent Tax — Bankruptcy Funds

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: We also noted that cards are kept on the bankruptcy cases in Delinquent Tax. A
card is kept which has a balance of the moneys being held for payment of taxes for each property.
When the balance due is collected, it is turned over as delinquent tax collections. A separate bank
account is used to hold this money. However, accotding to the Delinquent Tax Collector, a
reconciliation betwecn the bank account reconciled balance and the total of the card balances is

never done. .

Criteria: Funds held in trust should be reconciled to the underlying data to ensure proper
recording.

Effect: Entries on bankrptcy cards may not be updated properly or contain errors ot funds may
be deposited in incortect bank account and procedures are not in place to detect such errots.

Recommendation: We recommend that monthly when the bank account is reconciled that the
cards are totaled and the total is agreed to the reconciled bank balance. This procedure will
ensure that entries on the cards are made correctly and that all moneys held for bankruptcies are
placed in the proper account.

Response: County will implement procedure to reconcile monthly and County is exploring
options with software vendors to convett reconciliation from a manual to an automated process.
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SCHEDULE OF FIND]N GS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2008-6 Magistrate — Segregation of Duties

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: During most of the year 2008, each Magistrate maintained a separate office and
several had no staff. For these offices with no staff, the Magistrates receipted, recorded,
deposited, and reconciled all deposits.

Criteria: Segregation of duties provides for checks and balances as a transaction is processed
and completed

Effect: Lack of segregation of duties provides liitle assurance errors will be detected.

Recommendation: We recommend for the offices solely manned by the Magistiate, the Chief
Magistiate review all monthly transactions and initial vecords to indicate they have been
reviewed. During the last quarter of 2008, the County began restructuring the Magistiates into
three regional offices. Each regional office will have at least one clerk to alleviate the

segregation of duty issues.

Response: Two of the three offices are completed with the third region’s anticipated completion
during FY 2010. At that time, County will comply with said recommendation.

2008-7 Dawn Center Receivable

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: The County runs payroll of the Dawn Center through its payroll system and records
the transactions in expenditure accounts. At year-end, the County closes these transactions to a
receivable from the Dawn Center account. These accounts were not fully cleared out at year-end
and County had to furnish the auditors with an entry to close these accounts. This has occurred in
previous years and was not corrected, therefore the transactions were shown as County
expenditures and subsequently closed to fund balance included in the County’s general fund.
This is an immaterial amount of $3,463 from prior years. Also, the receivable from the Dawn
Center has increased from $599,579 at June 30, 2007 to $801,157 at Tune 30, 2008.

Criteria: Only County expenditures should be reflected in the financial statements. Receivables
should be reviewed monthly and non-collection should be pursued.

Effect: $801,157 of the County’s funds are being held by the Dawn Center which decreases the
cash flow and possible investment earnings for the County.
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. - COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA .
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-7 Dawn Center Receivable (continued)

Recommendation: The County should pursue the reason for non-payment by the Dawn Centet
and consider ceasing running the payrol! through the County’s system unless payment is received.

Response: County will bring matter to attention of Dawn Center with the intent of executing
new agreement with strict reimbursement deadlines.

2008-8 Allocation to Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional Detention Center

Significant Deficiency

Conditions: Orangeburg and Calhoun Counties fund the Orangeburg-Calhoun Regional
Detention Center (LEC) based on a split percentage of the budgeted expenditures of the LEC
The LEC’s activity is recorded through the County’s general ledger system in a separate fund and
the County approves the budget. For the past three years, the expenditures have exceeded the
budget resulting in a total fund balance deficit at June 30, 2008 of $(1,949,103). Orangeburg
County’s share of this deficit based on established percentages of occupancy is $(1,827,457).

Criteria: Budgets are a tool used to monitor actual activity. Excessive vatiances should be
investigated and budgets amended if necessary to provide funding for excess expenditures

Effect: The LEC’s apptopriations from the two counties are based on a budget which is
insufficient compared to the past three years of actual expenditures. Therefore, the LEC has been

incurring increasing fund deficits.

Recommendation: We recommend the County adopt a reasonable budget based on actual
expenditures of the LEC and monitor budget variances monthly to control excessive spending.
County appropriations should cover the actual expenditures of the LEC,

Response: Implemented billing actual expenditures instead of budgeted ones during the FY
2009. Corrective measures implemented prior to the close of FY 2009.
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. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
.SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS':

2008-9 Receivables

Material Weakness

Conditions: Receivables from the State were not recorded by the County for various funds as
follows: Legislative Delegation $126,778; Solid Waste $12,098; PRT Grant $9,984; Mapping

Grant $24,000; LEMPG $21,208.

A receivable of $119,804 was booked in prior years in error and has remained on the books in the
FEMA Winter Storm Fund During our audit procedures, we noted the uncollected receivable
and the County deemed it an error and subsequently requested it be corrected in the 2008 year.

Certified Sites Fund had a receivable of $180,000 from 2006 still on the books and a fund balance
of $180,000. Our audit procedures noted the $180,000 was received in 2007 and recorded as
income again in that year. A restatement of fund balance and correction of the accounts

receivable for $180,000 was required which closed the fund.

Pathways Fund had a fund balance deficit at June 30, 2007 of $101,194 due to an unrecorded
receivable at June 30, 2007. The funds were received in 2008 and recorded as 2008 revenue. A
correction of the prior year fund balance was required.

Solid Waste has two accounts receivable accounts on the ledger to separate tipping fees from
other receivables. The collection of other receivables was posted against the tipping fees
receivable account during the year resulting in an adjusiment required of $102,925 between the
accounts. The tipping fees receivable account showed a negative balance on the County’s books

prior to the necessary adjustment.

Revenues wete received during 2008 for the previous years in the DSS Incentive Fund and were
posted by the County to the receivable account but the receivablc was not reported in the previous
year. The beginning fund balance was restated to cotrect this error of $5,662.

The County has an Office of Justice Programs grant which they have filed guarterly status reports
reflecting the expenditures for the 2008 year of $13,124 No revenue has been received in this
OJP Fund. During our audit procedures, we noted no copies of the request for payment were
retained in the grant files. County personnel filed these reports online but failed to print a copy
for the files. The quarterly status reports were filed in May and August of 2008. No County
personnel had followed up on why the County has not received these requested funds.

Emergency Response Fund had a receivable of $25,708 from 2006 still on the books and no
current year activity. Our audit procedures noted the $25,708 was received in 2007 and recorded
as income again in that year. A restatement of fund balance and correction of the accounts
receivable for $25,708 was required which left a deficit fund balance of $474. The County
requested a transfer to be recorded from the General Fund to close the fund.
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S

1I. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

20089 Receivables (continued)

The School Resource Officer Fund’s accounts receivable was understated by $42,020 since 2006 i
due to a journal entry recorded in eror by the County to reclass excess expenditures to the .
General Fund. This also understated the fund balance of the General Fund.

A check was issued to the County for $1,230 pertaining to grant funds from the State on June 30, %
2008 It was received by the County in July, 2008 but was not turned over to the Finance |
Department for deposit until February, 2009 This check was found on a desk in a department of !

the County.

Criteria: The County should have controls in place to record all receivable of the County, When
payment of the receivables are received, effective procedures would facilitate the proper
recording of these revenues in the correct year.

Effect: Cwirent year revenues in several funds along with the respective fund balance are
misstated and incorrect accounts receivables balance are being carried on the County’s books.

Recommendation: We rccommend as receivables are identified by requesting grant
reimbursement or by some other means, the 1ecejvable be recorded in the correct fund and year.
As the revenue is received, these receivables should be reviewed to determine how to record the
receipt propetly. Accounts should be reviewed for reasonableness.

Response: There was a turnover in personnel in the Grants Department which resulted in !
untimely communication of receivables between Grants and Finance. County evaluating software 1
solution that would create shared documents between Grants and Finance which will include the !
requests for reimbursement in order to book the receivable.

2008-10 Land Sold but Still on County’s Books

Material Weakness

Conditions: Land held for resale of $134,229 was still recorded on the County’s books even
though it had been sold in 2005 resulting in an overstatement of fund balance. )

Criteria: Internal controls over assets of the County should be in place to ensure all assets
reported in the financial statements exist and are owned by the County.

Effect: Assets of the County were overstated by $134,229 for the past several years.
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I1. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2008-10 Land Sold but Still on County’s Books (continued)

Recommendation: The financial statements should be reviewed to make sure all assets owned
by the County are properly recorded.

Response: Matter was brought to owr attention in 2008 FY and corrective actions have been
implemented.

2008-11 Improper Recording of Prior Year Correction
Material Weakness

Conditions: County attempted to move prior year expenditures between funds through recording
a journal entry in the current year expenditures resulting in Capital Sales Tax Projects I Fund’s
current year expenditures being understated by $253,024 and Capital Projects Fund’s current year
expenditures being overstated by $253,024.

Criteria: By moving prior year expenditures between funds through recording of a journal entry
in current year expenditure accounts, the current year activity is misstated.

Effect: The curent year expenditures in these two funds are misstated
Recommendation: We recommend care be exercised as to the initial posting of expenditures to
proper funds. By reviewing project subsidiary ledgers periodically and agreeing them to the

funds, the need for corrections in subsequent years could be eliminated

Response: Journal entry was authorized by prior personnel who are no longer cmployed by
County, and recommended procedures will be adhered for close of FY 2009.
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I1. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-12 Accounts Payable

Material Weakness

Conditions: Accounts payable were booked in the 2006 year but subsequent payment of several
of these payables in the 2007 year were recorded by the County in the 2007 year expenditures
rather than offsetting the prior year payable resulting in understatement of fund balance in each
of these funds. The funds effected and therr tespective understatement were Capital Projects
Fund for $11,069, Roads & Bridges Maintenance Fund for $55,502, and Capital Sales Tax
Projects I Fund for $110,757.

An expenditure was properly recorded as a payable in vatious funds at June 30, 2005. In 2006,
the entire payment was charged to an expenditure account in the General Fund. Therefore, the
General Fund fund balance was understated and the accounts payable in the various funds have
been carried forward as unpaid. The following funds were effected: General Fund $(27,468),
Special Education $10,627, Roads & Bridges $7,385, Solid Waste $4,758.

Unrecorded outstanding invoices of $25,131 were found by the client eight months after year-end
that pertained to the 2008 year.

Errors in the recording of accounts payable in 2006 and posting the subsequent collection in 2007
resulted in the Solid Waste accounts payable being understated by $46,443.

Criteria: Internal controls over recbrding of expenditures and accounts payable are lacking.

Effect: Accounts payable have been misstated in various funds since 2006 which resulted in
double-recording of expenditures. Therefore, fund balances of these funds are understated.
Unrecorded current year payables overstate fund balances

Recommendation: The accounts payable of each fund should be reviewed monthly to ensure all
payables have been paid and propetly recorded. All invoices are to be turned in for payment
when received by departments.

Response: County will reconcile accounts payables monthly to prevent future findings.
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I1. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-13 Improper recording of Bank Account Closing

Material Weakness

Conditions: A bank account in the Vehicle Replacement Capital Projects fund was closed in
April 2008 The County recorded the cash received from the closing of $38,829 in miscellaneous
income of the General Fund rather than crediting the bank account on the books of the Vehicle
Replacement Fund. Therefore, the bank account of $38,829 was still shown on the County’s

books even though it was closed.

Criteria: Lack of communication between County offices resulted in the failure to reflect the
closing of this a bank account on the books.

Effect: Cash that did not exist was still reflected on the books in one fund and revenue was
incorrectly recorded in another fund.

Recommendation: We recommend the closing of a bank account be followed until the receipt of
the funds is received and communication between offices be sufficient to enable the transaction

be recorded properly.

Response:  Acknowledge recommendation and will take preventative measures from
reoccurrence :

2008-14 Unrecorded Bank Account

Material Weakness

Conditions: Cash held by fiscal agent in the 2004 Vehicle Replacement Fund was not recorded
on the County’s geneial ledger. The balance at June 30, 2007 was $20,588. During 2008, the
account earned interest of $267 and disbursed a check for $20,200 to the County before being
closed with a closing disbursement of $655 The County did not record the interest eatnings,
The $20,200 check received was recorded as a credit to an expenditure account in the Vehicle
Replacement Fund and the closing receipt was recorded in the General Fund as miscellaneous

revenue.

Criteria: Controls over recording of bank accounts is lacking. Receipts are being recorded as
offset to expenditure accounts.

Effect: Cash held in the County’s name has not been reflected on the books for the past several
years causing the capital projects fund balance to be understated. The County is recording
revenue in an expenditure account
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-14 Unrecorded Bank Account (continued)

Recommendation: We recommend all cash held in the County’s name be properly recorded in
the County’s financial statement.

Response: Will properly record revenues not to offset expenditures.

2008-15 Capital Sales Tax Projects

Material Weakness

Conditions: The County maintains project reports for each project under the Capital Sales Tax [
and 1 Funds through a module of the general ledger computer system. The individual project
reports did not agree with the activities posted in the Capital Sales Tax Funds’ general ledgers.
Each entry in the general ledger system must be coded with a project number in order for them to
be captured by the project reports. CPST I had $462,729 of corrections to the project reports to
capture activity from the general ledger. A correction to the gencral ledger of $(5,764) was also
required to agree the general ledger to actual corrected project reports. In addition, the prior years
of CPST II fund had to be restated by function to agree with the actual projects’ purpose.

Criteria: The control of reconciling capital sales tax project repoxts to the general ledger activity
is not being performed by the County.

Effect: Capital sales tax activity by function has been misclassified on the financial statements
Payments to municipalities for capital sales tax projects are often based on project reports which
have been misstated.

Recommendation: We recommend the capital project sales tax funds and related project reports
be reconciled monthly to ensure all data is properly recorded.

Response: County feels confident that from 2003-2004 FY through present, they have been
recorded propetly with project numbers attached to invoices.
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-16 Unrecorded Prior Year Audit Adjustments

Material Weakness

Conditions: Prior year andit adjustments were not recorded on the general ledger for the
following amounts — E911 $312,327, Special Education $(15,854), General Fund $(312,327)

Criteria: The financial statements are the responsibility of the County which includes ensuring
the County’s general ledger agrees to the financial statements issued.

Effect: The fund balances of three funds were misstated

Recommendation: We recommend the County reconcile the adjusted trial balance to the
financial statements each year to ensure all adjustments have been posted properly.

Response: County will ensure that fund balances and issued financials agree within a reasonable
period of time after completion of audit.

2008-17 Tmproper Reporting of Long-Term Debt
Material Weakness

Conditions: The County has a long-term note payable for the purchase of property from 2003,
The entire amount of interest and principal payable was recorded as an accounts payable which is
not in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The interest portion payable for
the entire period should not be recorded and the principal portion should only be recorded in the
government-wide statements. The County maintains its books on the fund basis. A restatement
of prior year fund balance of $1,392,730 was required as well as reclassing the current year
payment of $176,962 from accounts payable to the expenditures.

Criteria: Long-term debt should not be recorded in the fund basis general ledger.
Effect: The fund financial statements have been misstated for several years by the impropet

recording of long-term debt. The government-wide financial have also been misstated by the
improper recording of the total interest portion of the note and the balance has been in accounts

payable rather than long-term debt.

Recommendation: We recommend the County review generally accepted accounting principles.
Liabilities for long-term debt should not be recorded in the fund financial statements

Response: Debt has been satisfied and condition no longer exists. In future, County will adopt
recommended procedure by auditor.

131




. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-18 Reporting Related Revenue and Expenditures in Separate Funds

Material Weakness

Conditions: PRI Grant Fund expenditures were recorded in the General Fund and a capital
projects fund when incurred rather than in the fund set up for these grant transactions while the
revenue to reimburse these expenditures was being recorded in the grant fund. The result is an
overstatement of the grant fund balance and understatement of General Funds and Capital

Projects Fund’s fund balances.

Decolam Fund expenditures were recorded in the General Fund when incurred rather than in the
fund set up for these transactions while the revenue to reimburse these expenditures was being
recorded in the Decolam Fund. The result is an overstatement of Decolam Fund fund balance and
understatement of General Funds fund balance. The County requested the related expenditures be
moved to the correct fund to match the revenue

LEMPG Fund expenditures of $27,321 were recorded in the General Fund rather than in the fund
set up for these grant transactions.

Criteria: Controls should be in place to ensure revenues received and expenditures incurred are
recorded in the proper funds.

Effect: When revenues received as reimbuisement are not reconciled to expenditures, all funds
involved are incorrect

Recommendation: We recommend as grant reimbursement requests are filed, a recetvable be
booked in the appropriate fund and the grant revenues and expenditures in that fund be
reconciled.

Response: County is evaluating software solution that would create shared documents between
Grants and Finance which will include the requests for reimbursement so receivable can be

booked.

2008-19 Netting Revenues against Expenditures

Material Weakness

Conditions: Revenue of $282,978 received in the Granules Fund was recorded by the County in
an expenditure account.

We noted revenue being recorded in expenditure accounts which netted the State funds received
against the expenditures
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-19 Netting Revenues against Expenditures (continued)
Criteria: County should maintain proper controls over revenue recogpition.

Effect: By recording revenues as offsets to expenditure accounts, both revenue and expenditures
are misstated. :

Recommendation: We recommend the County follow generally accepted accounting principals
in the recording of revenues

Response: Additional staff training will be provided at FY 2009 close to ensure GAAP
compliance.

2008-20 Improper Reporting of Special Revenue Fund

Material Weakness

Conditions: The Multi Juris Task Force Fund is a component of the Grant Sub Funds Special
Revenue Fund which records transactions dealing with the Sheriff’s office drug related
enforcement. All the activity of the fund is being treated by the County as an agency fund by
manually recording all transactions through journal entries through a “Due to others” account
1ather than posting revenues and expenditures. Therefore, the activity is not being reflected
properly in the County’s financial statements nor are any potential capital purchases being noted
for inclusion in the County’s capital asset records.

Criteria: Special revenue funds report revenues of specified sources and related expenditures
which close each year to fund balance The County’s current procedures do not account for the
current year activity properly.

Effect: Without the auditor’s adjustment to correct, revenues and expenditures of this fund
cannot be reflected in the financial statements.

Recommendation: We recommend all activity of special revenue funds be properly posted to
revenue and expenditure accounts. No “closing” entry should be made since the general ledger
system will automatically close to fund balance at yeai-end.

Response: Per County Treasurer: Have no problem with adjusting this procedure as may be

directed. This application has been in place for over 10 years and prior audit firms have not had a
problem with this. This is not a material weakness in our system.
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.. COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA .
‘SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

2008-21 Capital Asset Restatements and Corrections

Material Weakness

Conditions: County purchased $12,529,840 in capital asset in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008. Only $5,372,989 was recorded by the County leaving $7,156,851 of corrections to the
capital asset system to be recorded. There was $1,115,823 of capital asset purchases in the prior
years which were not recorded resnlting in a prior period restatement. Several items from the
Library and the Emergency Sexvices radios under lease purchase were given to finance to enter in
the system at incorrect amounts. The shipping, sales tax, and installation charges are part of the
total cost of the asset. We recommend invoices be attached for verification of proper amount

being recorded.

Numerous assets under the County’s capitalization threshold of $2,500 were being depreciated.
The County only records these items for inventory purposes and only the items over the $2,500
threshold should be marked for depreciating.

Assets not completed should be recorded in the “Construction in Process™ category until
completed and placed in service. At that time, these assets can be transferred to the proper
permanent category and begin depreciating. The CIP category should be reviewed to ensure all
assets are still “in process.”

Numerous assets were sold or disposed but not disposed in the capital asset system. All sales
information should be sent to Finance and matched with assets in the system for proper
disposition

We tested the capital asset system’s depreciation. The accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2007
and 2008 were both determined to be incorrect. There was no pattern to the errors noted. For
some assets, the accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2008 was actually determined to be the
balance for the year ended 2009, 2010, 2008 plus an additional 5 months, or 2008 plus an
additional 3 months. The depreciation calculated by the system could not be used. The County
had to create spreadsheets to recalculate depreciation for all assets at Tune 30, 2007 and 2008. A
restatement of $889,276 was required to adjust the 2007 accumulated depreciation amount to

actual

Criteria: Controls over capital assets should be in place to ensure all capital assets owned by the
County are recorded in the capital asset system. Assets qualifying as depreciable either by cost or
type, should be depreciated in accordance with reasonable established asset lives.

Effect: The capital assets and accumulated depreciation of the County has been understated for
several years.
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:
2008-21 Capital Asset Restatements and Corrections (continued)

Recommendation: All capital assets acquired, including those capital project assets which the
County maintains ownership, should be examined for inclusion in the capital asset system. As
capital assets are disposed, they should be noted as such in the capital asset system. Accumulated
depreciation should be verified on depreciable assets. It is recommended that annually the
County’s capital assets be printed by location and the department head for that location review for
any unrecorded disposals or additions and reasonable remaining life.

Response: There are problems with the functionality of current software system and we are
exploring other options. We will implement a quarterly reconciliation of all CIP projects to
completed projects.

2008-22 Unreported Clerk of Conrt Bank Accounts

Material Weakness

Conditions: In the process of auditing the Clerk of Court’s trust accounts, we noted seven
accounts with a total value of $52,636 which were not on the County’s summary listing of trust
accounts at June 30, 2008. The listing is based on the bank reconciliations received by the
Finance Department from Clerk of Court personnel. Four of the seven accounts were dormant, so
that the Cletk of Court had not received June 30, 2008 statements to reconcile. One of the
accounts had not been reconciled at June 30, 2008, so the Finance Department had no
reconciliation to add to its list. The reason that the other two accounts were not included on the

list is not known.

Criteria: All bank accounts and activity should be recorded in the financial statements of the
County.

Effect: Seven bank accounts of the Clerk of Court were not included in the trial balances used to
prepare the financial statements

" Recommendation: We recommend controls be in place to ensure all bank accounts in the
County’s name be included in the financial statements

Response: County has a new Cletk of Court and administration will meet to review procedures
and implement recommended controls.
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
2008-23 Delinquent Tax Office Segregation of Duties

Material Weakness

Conditions: Presently, the Delinquent Tax Collector assists with collections, deposits money
received in his office, writes checks, signs checks and reconciles bank statements

Criteria: Segregation of duties provides for checks and balances as a transaction is processed
and completed.

Effect: Lack of segregation of duties provides little assurance errors will be detected.

Recommendation: We recommend that there be some segregation of duties between the four
employees in the office. Because of an error noted in the payment to a bidder, we also
recommend that the bidder payments be reviewed by another staff person.

Response: A clerical staff member will receive the request for payment on a form approved by
the Delinquent Tax Collector. The Deputy Delinquent Tax Collector will process the request for
payment and the Delinquent Tax Collector will approve the payment.

2008-24 Industrial Park Reimbursement

Material Weakness

Conditions: The County is involved in an industrial park with the City of Orangeburg. The
County and City are to split the costs associated with this park. The County pays the
expenditures and then requests reimbursement from the City for their half. During the 2008 year,
the County billed the City for $193,415 for several years of expenditures but recorded the entire
amount against cuirent year expenditures. Of this total, $177,871 was for expenditures in prior
years and $15,544 was to reimburse current year expenditures. Therefore, the general fund’s
fund balance had to be restated for the $177,871.

Criteria: The County has overstated expenditures for the past several years by not recording the
City’s portion of expenditures as a receivable.

Effect: As stated above, expenditures have been overstated and fund balances understated in the
General Fund.

Recommendation: We recommend the reimbursements be requested at least annually and the
City’s portion of the expenditures be recorded as a receivable.

Response: County will commit to billing City annuvally for all reimbursements; furthermore,
City is currently being billed for their portion by the vendor for most of the expenditures.

136




..~ - . .. .COUNTY OF ORANGEBURG; SOUTH CAROLINA
' ' SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2008

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENIS REPORTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
2008-25 Payroll Withholdings

Material Weakness

Conditions: The payroll liability accounts recorded on the County’s general ledger at June 30,
2008 were incorrect. Many of these liability accounts catried large debt balances indicating the
County was actually paying a large portion that should have been withheld from the employees.
Many of the balances have been accumulating over several years. The payroll liabilities had to be
adjusted by $487,228 which was a restatement of prior year fund balance. A large portion of this
pettains to the amount of health insurance premiums which were to be withheld on employees.

Criteria: Payroll withholding accounts should be reconciled to ensure proper amounts are
withheld to cover the related costs for benefits.

Effect: For several years, the payroll withholdings have been insufficient to cover the actual
costs of the benefits.

Recommendation: We recommend each month the payrol! withholdings be reconciled with the
actual costs paid to ensure withholdings are sufficient.

Response: County agrees to implement recommendation.

2008-26 Closing of General Ledger

Material Weakness

Conditions: The auditors were given a trial balance at the end of September, 2008, for the year
ended June 30, 2008. During fieldwork three weeks later, the auditors noted that the general
ledger balances had changed from the “closed” trial balance provided. Due to lack of
communication between offices, some entries were still being made to the 2008-year system.
Therefore, the auditors had to obtain 2 new trial balance.

Criteria: Controls over closing the general ledger system should be in place to ensute all access
to the system is denied once the offices are notified the year is closed.

Effect: An audit is performed on a “closed” set of books. By continuing to record activity, the
financial statements could be misstated if this new activity is not discovered.

Recommendation: The general ledger system should be locked at the end of the year with only
limited access allowed for recording any necessary andit adjustments

Response: County will explore system prior to 2009 FY close for its capability of locking all
entries out at year end to prevent reoccurrence of said finding
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II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT .

2008-27 Budget

Material Weakness

Conditions: The original budget passed by Council and all supplemental changes did not agree
with the budget entered into the County’s general ledger system nor was the County able to
provide a complete final budget to the anditors. The auditors were given a copy of the original
budget approved by Council and a list of all supplemental changes, and had to compile the final

budget.

Criteria: The budget is a tool used to measure actual results against historically based
expectations.

Effect: By not providing Council and all other departments with a correct “final” budget, the use
of budget variance with actual results has a very limited value.

Recommendation: We recommend the budget be entered into the general ledger system
propetly to reflect the original approved budget and all supplemental changes.

Response: County will follow proper procedures to record all budget adjustments so financial
reports are accurate and final budget can be reconciled to original budget.

III. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS

None.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
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Findings — Financial Siatements Audit
2007-1 Preparation of Financial Statements

Significant Deficiency

Condition and Criteria: In May 2006, the AICPA issued Statement on Auditing Standards No. 112,
Commmicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit  This standard, which
became effective for the County’s 2007 financial statement audit, emphasizes the need for the County
to have internal controls over financial reporting in place that will provide rcasonable assurances that
the County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). In order for these controls to be effective, County personnel needs to receive
adequate training to allow them to prepare the County’s financial statements in accordance with
GAAP. Internal controls over financial reporting should be in place to provide reasonable assurance
that financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Corrective Action Taken: The County’s Finance Director and Accounting Manager have attended
training and are working toward preparing the County’s financial statements

2007-2  Capital Assets — Restatement

Material Weakness

Condition and Criteria: During fiscal years ending prior to June 30, 2007, the County incurred
approximately $10.1 million in expenditures for buildings and infrastructure that were not included in
capital assets. Expenditures for capital projects are not examined and classified as capital or non-
capital as they are incurred.

Corrective Action Taken: The County is in the process of implementing a review procedure to
ensure 1ecords related to County buildings are accwrate and complete.

2007-3
Significant Deficiency

Condition and Criteria: Deposits invested with two financial institutions were not in full
compliance with South Carolina Code of Laws Section 12-45-220. Agreements should be in place
with all of the County’s financial institutions to adequately collateralize its deposits at all times.

Corrective Action Taken: The deposit accounts in question were subsequently collateralized and

management has established procedures requiring the monthly reporting and verification of collateral
to secure all deposits in excess of federal deposit instuance coverage.
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